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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)
XI QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2009
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission File Number 333-129951

INNOPHOS, INC.

(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in its Chaer)

Delaware 20-1380712
(State or Other Jurisdiction of (I.R.S. Employer
Incorporation or Organization) Identification No.)

259 Prospect Plains Roa

Cranbury, New Jersey 08512
(Address of Principal Executive Offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s Telephone Number, Including Area Code(609) 495-2495

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 mofah$or such shorter period that the registrans wemjuired to file such reports), and
(2) has been subject to such filing requirementshe past 90 days. Ye&l No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant ldsnstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥&eb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted puntsio Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (8232.405 of ttiapter) during the preceding 12
months (or for such shorter period that the regigtwas required to submit and post such file¥es [ No [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlearge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, maccelerated filer or a smaller report
company. See definition of “accelerated filer,"rja accelerated filer,” and “smaller reporting camy’ in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large Accelerated Filer] Accelerated Filerd Non-accelerated filerX] Smaller reporting companyl
Indicate by check mark whether the registrantshell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). YesO No

As of September 30, 2009, the registrant had 1sb@@es of common stock outstanding
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PART |

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets (Unaudited)
(Dollars in thousands)

September 3C December 31
2009 2008
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 122,55¢ $ 124,62
Restricted cas 1,74¢ —
Accounts receivable, n 66,53’ 79,53:
Inventories 104,27( 145,31(
Other current asse 35,69 33,99
Total current asse 330,80¢ 383,45¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 209,75¢ 230,42:
Goodwill 51,70¢ 51,70¢
Intangibles and other assets, 51,80¢ 54,51¢
Total asset $ 644,08( $ 720,10:¢
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt $ = $ 72,61
Accounts payable, trade and ot 35,131 36,67¢
Other current liabilitie: 40,91( 39,23:
Total current liabilities 76,041 148,52:
Long-term debi 190,00( 243,88
Other lon¢-term liabilities 35,50 35,86¢
Total liabilities 301,54¢ 428,27:
Commitments and contingencies (see note
Stockholder' equity 342,53: 291,83:
Total stockholder equity 342,53: 291,83:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 644,08( $ 720,10:

See notes to condensed consolidated financiahstats
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations (Undited)

Net sales

Cost of goods sol

Gross profit

Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati
Research & development expen
Total operating expens

Operating incom:

Interest expense, n

Foreign exchange ga

Other income, ne

Income before income tax

Provision for income taxe

Net income

(Dollars in thousands)

Three months ende:

September 30,

$

$

See notes to condensed consolidated financiahstmis

INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

2009
161,93-
114,20«

47,73(

18,77¢
462
19,23]
28,49:
4,60
(24%)

24,12¢
8,08¢
16,04¢

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations (Undited)

Net sales

Cost of goods sol

Gross profit

Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati
Research & development expen
Total operating expens

Operating incom:

Interest expense, n

Foreign exchange ga

Other income, ne

Income before income tax

Provision for income taxe

Net income

(Dollars in thousands)

Nine months ende:

$

September 30,
2009

519,51

352,59¢

166,91t

$

See notes to condensed consolidated financiahstats

4

50,17
1,524
51,60¢
115,21¢
16,14¢
(51€)

99,58¢
35,68t

63,90/

Three months ende:
September 30,
2008
$ 291,77
165,18!¢
126,58.

13,21(
52€
13,73¢
112,84
7,23(
(870
(159
106,63
33,04

Nine months ende:
September 30,
2008
$ 718,31
443,15!
275,15!

47,05
1,587
48,63¢
226,51
20,98(
(879
39C
206,80:
61,05¢
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (airdited)

(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activitir
Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigenl by operating activitie:

Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of deferred financing charg
Deferred income tax (benefit) provisi
Deferred profit sharini
Shar-based compensatic
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Increase in restricted ca
Decrease (increase) in accounts receiv
Decrease (increase) in inventor
Increase in other current ass
(Decrease) increase in accounts pay
Increase in other current liabiliti
Changes in other loi-term assets and liabilitie
Net cash provided from operating activit
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure
Net cash used for investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Return of capital to pare
Revolver borrowing
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock opt
Deferred financing cos
Principal payments of tel-loan
Net cash used for financing activiti
Net change in cas
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of pe
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Nine months ende:
September 30,
2009

$ 63,90«

38,21«
2,28¢
(2,419
(470)
2,47(

(1,749)
12,99¢
41,04¢
(1,709
(1,545)
1,67¢
9,651
164,36!

(12,729
(12,729

(26,167)

2
(1,050)
(126,501
(153,709
(2,067)

124,62:

$ 12255

See notes to condensed consolidated financiahsémties

5

Nine months ende:
September 30,
2008

$ 145,74,

40,37:
1,774
2,913

41C
2,34C

(44,019

(52,41)
(99
8,60¢
30,47:

(1,699
134,40

(13,23
(13,239)

(13,95()

1,42(

(1,500

(14,030
107,13¢

15,56¢

$ 12270
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Statements of Stockholders’ Equity and Other Comprkeensive Income (Loss) (Unaudited)

(Dollars in thousands)

Accumulated

Other Total
Retained Comprehensive Shareholders’
Earnings/ Paid-in
(Deficit) Capital Income/(Loss) Equity
Balance, January 1, 20! $ (2,912  $119,13: $ (2,27) $ 113,94t
Net income 197,10¢ 197,10¢
Change in pension and p-retirement plans, net of t 247 247
Other comprehensive income, net of 197,35t
Shar-based compensatic 3,467 3,461
Return of capita (22,94() (22,94()
Balance, December 31, 20 $194,19° $ 99,65¢ $ (2,029 $ 291,83
Net income 63,90« 63,90«
Change in pension and p-retirement plans, net of t 25 25
Other comprehensive loss, net of 63,92¢
Shar+-based compensatic 2,47(C 2,47(
Return of capita (15,69¢) (15,69¢)
Balance, September 30, 20 $258,10: $ 86,43( $ (1,999 $ 342,53

See notes to condensed consolidated financiahstats
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

1. Basis of Statement Presentation:
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Innophos, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Iphos Investments Holdings, Inc. (“Investments Haddi"), incorporated under the
laws of the State of Delaware. Innophos InvestmEatslings, Inc. is a wholly-owned subsidiary of tqpihos Holdings, Inc. (“Holdings”).

Interim Financial Statements

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidetaddal statements of Innophos Holdings, Inc. Sobsidiaries, or Company,
have been prepared in accordance with generalgpaed accounting principles for interim financigporting and do not include all
disclosures required by generally accepted acoogiptiinciples for annual financial reporting, amsld be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated and combined financial statesnaf the Company at December 31, 2008 and fothite years then ended.

The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidetaddial statements of the Company reflect all sitiients, consisting only of
normal recurring accruals, which management corsidecessary for a fair statement of the resultgpefations for the interim periods and is
subject to year end adjustments. The results afatipes for the interim periods are not necessaniljcative of the results for the full year.
The December 31, 2008 condensed balance sheavdat@erived from audited financial statementsdogs not include all disclosures
required by accounting principles generally acagjiiehe United States of America.

Material subsequent events are evaluated and destlirough the report issuance date, Novembdl0g.2

Recently | ssued Accounting Standards

The Company adopted the provisions of ASC 820- &, Value Measurements and Disclosures (formerdye®tent of Financial
Standards (SFAS) No. 157, Fair Value Measurememnttl) respect to non-financial assets and liab#iteffective January 1, 2009. This
pronouncement defines fair value, establishesradveork for measuring fair value and expands discls about fair value measurements.
The adoption of ASC 820-10 did not have a matémglact on the Company’s consolidated financial fimsiand results of operations.

The Company adopted ASC 805 (formerly SFAS No. R}1Business Combinations), for business combinatan or after January 1,
2009. This requires recognition of assets acquligbljities assumed, and any non-controlling ietgrin the acquiree at the acquisition date,
measured at their fair values as of that date.daseness combination achieved in stages, thisgumorement requires recognition
of identifiable assets and liabilities, as weltlas non-controlling interest in the acquiree, atfilll amounts of their fair values. This
pronouncement also requires the fair value of aegun-process research and development (IPRD re¢orded as indefinite lived
intangibles, contingent consideration to be recomie the acquisition date, and restructuring ampliaition-related deal costs to be expensed
as incurred. In addition, any excess of the falu@@f net assets acquired over purchase pricaaypdubsequent changes in estimated
contingencies are to be recorded in earnings. Mipéementation of this standard did not have a natEnpact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position and results of agiens.

The Company adopted ASC 855 as of June 30, 200@¢fty SFAS No. 165, Subsequent Events). ASC 88bilshnot result in
significant changes in the subsequent events thahtty reports. Rather, ASC 855 introduces thecept of financial statements being
available to be issued. Financial statements ansidered available to be issued when they are atmpi a form and format that complies
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAARd all approvals necessary for issuance have tigtained.

In June 2009, the FASB finalized SFAS No. 166, Asting for Transfers of Financial Asset, an amemnunoé FASB Statement
No. 140, which was later superseded by the FASHfi€ation and included in ASC topic 860. Among atlitems the provision removes t
concept of a qualifying special-purpose entity aladifies that the objective of paragraph ASC 8604D-4 is to determine whether a
transferor and all of the entities included in ttansferor’s financial statements being presentad lsurrendered control over transferred
financial assets. This pronouncement is effectaraudry 1, 2010. The implementation of this stanadldchot have a material impact on the
Company'’s consolidated financial position and ressof operations.

In June 2009, the FASB finalized SFAS No. 167, Adieg FASB interpretation No. 46(R), which was lataperseded by the FASB
Codification and included in ASC topic 810. Theyisions of ASC 810 provide guidance in determinivigether an enterprise has a
controlling financial interest in a variable intst@ntity. This determination identifies the primaeneficiary of a variable interest entity as
enterprise that has both the power to direct tieities of a variable interest entity that mogirficantly impacts the entity’s economic
performance, and the obligation to absorb losséiseoright to receive benefits of the entity thaiiicl

7
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

potentially be significant to the variable interestity. This pronouncement also requires ongogagsessments of whether an enterprise
primary beneficiary and eliminates the quantitatp@roach previously required for determining thenpry beneficiary. New provisions of
this pronouncement are effective January 1, 20h8.implementation of this standard will not hawaaterial impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position and results of atiens.

In July 2009, the FASB issued ASC topic 105 (folm&FAS No. 168, The Hierarchy of Generally Accebfecounting Principles).
ASC 105 contains guidance which reduces the U.SABGAierarchy to two levels, one that is authon@atnd one that is not. This
pronouncement is effective September 15, 2009.afoption of this pronouncement did not have arceffa the consolidated financial
statements.

In October 2009, the FASB approved for issuancergime Issues Task Force (EITF) issue@8-Revenue Arrangements with Multi|
Deliverables (currently within the scope of FASBcAanting Standards Codification (ASC) Subtopic @3- This statement provides
principles for allocation of consideration amorgyrtultiple-elements, allowing more flexibility identifying and accounting for separate
deliverables under an arrangement. The EITF inted@an estimated selling price method for valuireggglements of a bundled arrangement
if vendor-specific objective evidence or third-agtzidence of selling price is not available, aighgicantly expands related disclosure
requirements. This standard is effective on a @oype basis for revenue arrangements enteresimuaterially modified in fiscal years
beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Alternativalyoption may be on a retrospective basis, ang apglication is permitted. The
implementation of this standard will not have aenial impact on the Company’s consolidated finangsition and results of operations.

2. Dividends:
The following is the dividend activity for the tlr@nd nine months ended September 30, 2009 and 2008

Three Months Ended September 30 Nine Months Ended September 30

2009 2008 2009 2008
Dividends declare- per share $ 0.17 $ — $ 0.51 $ 0.34
Dividends declare- aggregatt 3,622 — 10,85: 7,114
Dividends paic- per shar¢ 0.17 0.17 0.51 0.51
Dividends paic- aggregatt 3,622 3,56¢ 10,82: 10,66¢

As all of the business for Holdings and Innophogbiments Holdings, Inc. are transacted throughphos, Inc. and Subsidiaries,
Holdings and Innophos Investments Holdings, Ine.dependent on earnings and distribution of funoi® finnophos, Inc. and Subsidiaries.

3. Share-Based Compensation:

Holdings compensation programs include share-bpagchents. The primary share-based awards andgeéaral terms and conditions
are as follows:

» Stock options, which entitle the holder to purchadeer the end of a vesting term, a specified nemath shares of Holdings
common stock at an exercise price per share set emthe market price of the Compis common stock on the date of gr¢

» Restricted stock grants, which entitle the holdereceive, at the end of each vesting term, a ipdciumber of shares of
Holdings common stock, and which also entitle thiglér to receive dividends paid on such grantsujihout the vesting
period.

» Performance share awards which entitle the holwlezdeive, at the end of a vesting term, a numbshares of Holdings
common stock, within a range of shares from zerm $pecified maximum, calculated using a three figare average return
invested capital (i.e. the three year period 22080 for a 2008 award) as defined solely by refegen Holdings own activitie
Dividends will accrue over the vesting period anel @aid on performance share awards when fullyede

« Annual Board of Directors stock retainer grantsiclitentitle external members of the Board to ree@iwnumber of shares of
Holdings common stock equal to a stipulated anretainer value

Since these programs benefit the employees of lwgmpdnc. all amounts have been recorded in ousal@ated results.

8
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

The following table summarizes the components afeshased compensation expense, all of which has Hassifeed as selling, gene
and administrative expense:

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 3C September 3C September 3C September 3C
2009 2008 2009 2008
Stock options $ 58¢€ $ 17€ $ 957 $ 471
Restricted stoc 7 232 14 69t
Performance shart 65€ 47¢ 1,49¢ 1,17¢
Total share-based
compensation
expenst $ 1,257 $ 887 $  2,47C $ 2,34

There were 5,500 restricted shares granted wittir adlue of $45 in the first quarter of 2009. Té@svards are classified as equity
awards and vest through no later than January@ll,.ZThe related compensation expense is basdteatate of grant share price of $8.24.
The compensation expense is amortized on a striighbasis over the requisite vesting period.

The fair value of the options granted during 20@&wetermined using the Black-Scholes oppdning model. The assumptions use
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model were asofoB:

2009 Grants

Non-qualified stock options May 7th June 2nd
Expected volatility 61.4% 61.4%
Dividend yield 5.C% 4.S%
Risk-free interest rat 2.5% 2.9%
Expected tern 6 year: 6 year:
Weighted average grant date fair value of stocloap $ 554 $ 6.5¢

There were 84,651 and 136,849 options grantedavittir value of $469 and $902 on May 7, 2009 amet Ry 2009, respectively. These
awards are classified as equity awards and vestgirno later than May 7, 2012. The related comgi@rs expense is based on the date of
grant fair value of $5.54 and $6.59 per commoneshaspectively. The compensation expense is aredriin a straight-line basis over the
requisite vesting period. For these grants, the @om had chosen a blended volatility which congi§80% average of the peer group and
50% of Innophos’. The expected term for the stqafkoms is based on the simplified method sinceGbmpany has limited data on the
exercises of stock options. These stock optionéifgwes “plain vanilla” stock options. The dividernyield is the expected annual dividend
payments divided by the average stock price updalate of grant. The risk-free interest ratedaraved from the U.S. Treasury securities in
effect on the date of grant whose maturity periqdads the options expected term. The Company apaliexpected forfeiture rate to stock-
based compensation expense. The estimate of tiedtdioe rate is based primarily upon historical esipnce of employee turnover. As actual
forfeitures become known, stock-based compensatipense is adjusted accordingly.

There were 94,150 performance shares granted, agpachieving targeted return on invested capitathe second quarter of 2009
with a fair value of $14.57 per common share, od$iillion in the aggregate. The expected terntlierperformance shares is a 3 year cliff
vesting. Declared dividends will accrue on the pemniance shares and will vest over the same peFioel compensation expense is amortized
on a straight-line basis over the requisite vegtiedod.
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

4. Restricted Cash:

Restricted cash consists of escrow funds agrebd tteposited in connection with a dispute betwherCompany and a third party. The
escrow funds will be disbursed in accordance withdgreed terms upon the satisfaction of the disput

5. Inventories:
Inventories consist of the following:

September 3C December 31

2009 2008
Finished product $ 67,81¢ $ 111,03:
Raw material 28,46¢ 26,18:
Spare part 7,981 8,09¢
$ 104,27( $ 145,31(

Inventory reserves as of September 30, 2009 andrbleer 31, 2008 were $11,605 and $8,863, respegtivel

6. Other Current Assets:
Other current assets consist of the following:

September 3C December 31
2009 2008
Creditable taxes (value added tax $ 2,517 $ 5,44«
Prepaid income taxce 14,23¢ 1,49
Deferred taxe 6,58( 6,58(
Prepaids 8,69: 16,22(
Other 3,67 4,25
$ 35,69 $ 33,99

10
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)

(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

7. Intangibles and Other Assets, net:
Intangibles and other assets consist of the foligwi

Developed technology and application patents, hatcumulated amortization of $9,696 for
2009 and $8,279 for 20(

Customer relationships, net of accumulated amditizaf $3,724 for 2009 and $3,012 for 2(

Tradenames and license agreements, net of acc@t@atortization of $3,297 for 2009 and
$2,839 for 200¢

Capitalized software, net of accumulated amortiwatf $2,929 for 2009 and $2,496 for 2(

Non-compete agreement, net of accumulated amortizafi®283 for 2009 and $189 for 20

Total Intangibles

Deferred financing costs, net of accumulated amatitin of $6,010 for 2009 and $13,643 foi
2008

Deferred income taxe

Other asset

Total other assets

8. Other Current Liabilities:
Other current liabilities consist of the following:

Taxes

Payroll relatec
Freight and rebate
Benefits and pensior
Interest

Legal

Other

11

Useful life September 3C December 31
(years) 2009 2008

10-20 $ 26,90« $ 28,32

5-15 7,60¢ 8,31¢

5-20 6,06: 6,521

35 767 1,29:

5 347 441

$ 41,68 $ 44,89«

$ 6,56¢ $ 7,80¢

70C 512

2,852 1,30€

$ 10,12 $ 9,62«

$ 51,80¢ $ 54,51¢

September 3C

2009

December 31

2008

$ 891C $ 9,31¢
12,16 6,507
3,00 4,947
4,717 5,68¢
2,16 9,28
1,24¢ 82¢
8,70¢ 2,66¢
$ 40,91 $ 39,23
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

9. Debt and Interest:
Short-term borrowings and long-term debt consigheffollowing:

September 3C December 31

2009 2008
Senior credit facility $ — $ 126,50(
Senior subordinated not 190,00( 190,00(
$ 190,00( $ 316,50(
Less current portio — 72,61

$ 190,00( $ 243,88

On May 22, 2009, the Company and its wholly owngasgdiary, Innophos Canada, Inc. (the “Borrowegsi)ered into a Loan and
Security Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with e@ntlenders (collectively, the “Lenders”) includikigachovia Bank, National
Association, as agent.

The Loan Agreement provides the Borrowers withvaleng line of credit from the Lenders of up to556 million in the aggregate,
with a $20 million letter of credit sub-facilityetminating on May 22, 2013. The amount actuallyilabée to the Borrowers may be less than
the maximum credit and will vary from time to timdepending on, among other factors, the amounsafet eligible inventory and accounts
receivable as calculated for purposes of the Logreément. The obligations of the Borrowers underLiban Agreement are secured by the
accounts receivable, inventory and other assditofphos, Inc. and Innophos Canada, Inc., not diolpequipment or real property.
Innophos Inc.’s Mexico-based subsidiaries are abadufrom certain of the covenants under the Loare&ment, do not guaranty the
indebtedness of Innophos, Inc. and Innophos Camadaincurred under it, and do not furnish colfatén connection with it.

The Loan Agreement includes affirmative as welhagative covenants that prohibit or restrict aetgrof actions without the Lenders’
approval, including covenants that affect the gbdif the Borrowers and its subsidiaries among mothiags to (a) incur or guarantee debt,
(b) create liens, (c) enter into mergers, recapé#bns or similar transactions or purchase afiudsstantially all of the assets or stock of
another party, (d) sell assets, (e) change nar)a@sake certain changes to their business, (gpbaptly prepay, amend, acquire or refinance
indebtedness, (h) pay dividends on, or purchaspiigcor redeem shares of, capital stock, (i) ckaaggounting methods, (j) make
investments, or (k) enter into transactions witfiliafes.

In addition, the Loan Agreement requires the Boesato maintain a fixed charge coverage ratio (oarsolidated basis) of at least
1.00 to 1.00 as of the last day of each calendantimior the preceding twelve consecutive fiscal therduring any “Compliance Period.”
Compliance Period is defined as any period begmoima day on which (i) an event of default untierltoan Agreement has occurred and is
continuing or (ii) the excess availability undee ttevolving credit facility is less than $16.0 naifi through and including the first day when
excess availability has exceeded $16.0 millior6fdiconsecutive days during each of which no evedefault has occurred. The Loan
Agreement also requires the Borrowers to mainthaildimes excess availability under the revolvargdit facility of at least $6.5 million.
The Loan Agreement allows the Borrowers to payemiale and pay dividends or make other distribstionstockholders in an aggregate
amount not to exceed $5.0 million in any calendaarter.

As of September 30, 2009, the Borrowers had $51llBmexcess availability, above the minimum exxavailability requirements, as
calculated in accordance with the Loan Agreemedithare was no amount outstanding on the revoleradit line. A total of $1.8 million in
face amount of letters of credit were issued utlgesub-facility to support instruments outstandinger a prior credit facility terminated on
that date.

The Company was party to a Credit Agreement dateaf August 13, 2004, as subsequently amendedZ@@t Credit Facility”). On
May 22, 2009, the Company entered into a Terminatigreement with the agent and J P Morgan Chask,BaA. and National City Bank,
the latter two as issuing banks relating to lettérsredit, pursuant to which, among other thirtge,2004 Credit Facility was terminated, the
Company paid the $72.7 million of outstanding témam balance (principal and accrued interest) foaish on hand, and security held by the
lenders on substantially all the Company’s propesdg released. In the second quarter of 2009 #yimpnt resulted in an approximate $0.4
million charge to earnings for the acceleratiomeferred financing charges. Letters of credit aggtiag $1.8 million previously issued in
favor of third parties were left outstanding sugpdrby the letters of credit newly issued undersiie-facility described above.
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

Prior to the termination of the term loan the Compmade a $53.6 million excess cash flow paymeth@term loan on March 16,
2009. In the first quarter of 2009 this paymentihesi in an approximate $0.4 million charge to eags for the acceleration of deferred
financing charges.

The Senior Subordinated Notes due 2014 accrueesitéom the issue date at a rate of 8.875% pasranpayable semi-annually in
arrears on February 15th and August 15th of eaah ye

Holdings Senior Unsecured Notes due 2012 accreeeistt from the issue date at a rate of 9.5% pafranpayable semi-annually in
arrears on April 15 and October 15 of each yearophos Holdings, Inc. is dependent on the earramgisdistributions from Innophos, Inc.
and subsidiaries to fund this obligation. On AgAl, 2009 the Company purchased $10.0 million oBtB&6 Senior Unsecured Notes due
April 2012 for $6.5 million. The $3.5 million reément gain was reflected in interest expense midbldings Consolidated Statement of
Operations in the second quarter of 2009. Holdalgs recorded accelerated deferred financing adstpproximately $0.2 million in the
second quarter of 2009.

As of September 30, 2009, the Company was in aurthgliance with all debt covenant requirements.

Total interest cash payments by the Company fdndébtedness for the nine months ended Septenth@089 and September 30, 2
was $17,399 and $23,572, respectively.

The carrying value of our Senior Subordinated Nates Holdings Senior Unsecured Notes are $190Itom#énd $56.0 million,
respectively. The fair values at September 30, Z888luding accrued interest) are approximatelyl$d ®nillion and $56.0 million,
respectively.

Interest expense, net consists of the following:

Three months ended Nine months ended
September 3C September 3C September 3C September 3C
2009 2008 2009 2008

Interest expens $  4,36¢€ 7,002 $ 14,49¢ 20,15¢

Deferred financing co: 354 59C 2,28¢ 1,774

Interest incom (54) (359) (497 (639
Less: amount capitalized for capital

projects (59 ©)] (148 (319

Total interest expense, r $  4,60i $  7,23( $ 16,14¢ $  20,98(
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10. Other Long-term liabilities:

Other long-term liabilities consist of the follovgn

September 3C December 31
2009 2008
Environmental liabilities $ 1,10C 1,10¢
Profit sharing liabilities 2,631 3,10¢
Deferred income taxe 19,48( 21,707
Pension and post retirement liabilities (U.S. aash&la only 5,151 4,647
Other liabilities 7,13¢ 5,30%
$ 35,50% $ 35,86¢

11. Income Taxes:

The effective income tax rate on income beforesaxas 33% and 36% for the three and nine monthsde8dptember 30, 2009
compared to 31% and 30% for the three and ninemsaerided September 30, 2008. The change in thetiefféax rate is a result of increa:
earnings in higher tax jurisdictions such as th&édhStates versus Mexico and a full valuationva#loce on our net deferred tax assets in the
U.S. as of September 30, 2008. Currently, the ComEunder examination, or has been contactedxXamination, by certain foreign
jurisdictions for its income tax returns for theay® 2004 through 2008. As of September 30, 2008jgroficant adjustments have be
proposed to the Company’s tax positions and thegamm currently does not anticipate any adjustmtivaswould result in a material change
to its financial position.

The Company is included in a consolidated U.Sré¢dxrn of Innophos Holdings, Inc., however the imeotax provision has been
prepared on a separate return basis. The Mexidasidiaries file separate tax returns and currestrme taxes receivable or payable are
reflected on the accompanying combined balancetshee

Income taxes paid were $46,277 and $22,408 fonitheemonths ended September 30, 2009 and Sept@db2008, respectively.

12. Commitments and Contingencies
Environmental

The Company’s operations are subject to extensidechanging federal and state environmental lawlsregulations. The Company’s
manufacturing sites have an extended history afstréhal use, and soil and groundwater contaminatere or may have occurred in the past
and might occur or be discovered in the future.

Environmental efforts are difficult to assess famerous reasons, including the discovery of newedial sites, discovery of new
information and scarcity of reliable informationrf@éning to certain sites, improvements in techgglachanges in environmental laws and
regulations, numerous possible remedial technigudssolutions, difficulty in assessing the invohemhof and the financial capability of
other potentially responsible parties and the aededrtime periods over which remediation occurse®than the items listed below, the
Company is not aware of material environmentaliliiéds which are probable and estimable. As thenpany’s environmental contingencies
are more clearly determined, it is reasonably fsshat amounts may need to be accrued. Howearagement does not believe, based on
current information, that environmental remediatiequirements will have a material impact on thenpany’s results of operations, financ
position or cash flows.

Under the agreements by which the Company acqthiee@hosphates Business and related assets, thea@gpiinas certain rights of
indemnification from the sellers for breach of egentations, warranties, covenants and other agresnThe indemnification rights relating
to undisclosed environmental matters are subjectttain substantial limitations and exclusions erpired as of August 13, 2009.

Future environmental spending is probable at derisiNashville, TN, the eastern portion of whicdieen used historically as a
landfill, and a western parcel previously acquifrean a third party, which reportedly had housed, tmulonger does, a fertilizer and pesticide
manufacturing facility. We have an estimated ligjivith a range of $0.942 million. The remedial action plan has yet tdibalized, and ¢
such, the Company has recorded a liability, whagireésents the Company’s best estimate, of $1.lom#is of September 30, 2009.

The Environmental Protection Agency, or EPA, hadated that compliance at facilities in the ph@dplindustry is a high enforcem:
priority. After several years of expressing varieosicerns (without issuing any notice of violatiaput aspects of our
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Geismar, LA operations, in March 2008, we receiadetter from the Department of Justice, or DOdidating that EPA had referred the ¢
for civil enforcement, contending, among other gsinthat we do not qualify for certain exemptioreshvave claimed, and alleging that we
violate RCRA at Geismar by failing to manage twaenals appropriately. Although the letter statedttEPA/DOJ intended to seek
unspecified penalties and corrective action, ippsed discussions to explore possible resolutitigiwwe undertook and are pursuing.
During the fourth quarter of 2008, the DOJ/EPA dedeal that Innophos and its neighboring intercoretesupplier, PCS, undertake certain
“interim measures” to address DOJ/EPA’s chief emvinental concerns. We and PCS have initiated fetitnical efforts to explore solutions
to the government concerns. Based on our contdlettihé agencies to date in 2009, we have deterniinggrobable that one of the process
modifications will need to be undertaken in thetrssveral months, and likewise probable that thpit@kexpenditure and future operating
expense of that modification will not be materiai)ess the DOJ adds terms and conditions that aesldt in the parties not reaching
agreement. However, the second measure sought ByHP@ has not yet been fully evaluated from a teldgical or cost standpoint. The
companies have proposed to DOJ/EPA a scheduleiébtrevaluation, and although the government hagmatoved the schedule, the
companies are proceeding as proposed. Based up@rswdar, there appears to be at least one tealyidable approach, but costs of a full
scale operation as compared to other approachemakaown at this time. Even though the compah#@e begun substantial technical work
in an attempt to develop a feasible approach toesddDOJ/EPA’s concerns, we cannot guarantee tinaeohnical efforts will be successful,
whether either party would be willing to implemeaotutions or, depending on those factors and tkeags’position, whether this matter w
be settled with DOJ/EPA or will require litigatioBhould litigation become necessary to defend perations at Geismar as compliant with
environmental laws and regulations, no assurancédeaiven as to its outcome. We have determinagdaticontingent liability is neither
probable nor estimable at this time, but liabilgyreasonably possible.

Litigation
OCP Arbitration

In December 2008, Innophos’ Mexican affiliate, Iphos Mexicana, or Mexicana, initiated binding adiibn with OCP, S.A., or OCP,
its sole supplier of phosphate rock for Mexico, @aming pricing terms for 2008 and 2009 under Man&'s agreement with that supplier.
Mexicana also claimed that OGRroposed pricing breached the agreement. A mdrletee arbitrators sitting in Paris, France uralespice!
of the International Chamber of Commerce was setettt hear the case, interpret the pricing promsiof the contract, and derive the
phosphate rock price for both years. Hearings er2608 and 2009 pricing issues are scheduled o begNovember 9, 2009.

The parties previously had reached agreement o8 @2@€rim prices, which the Company paid for shiptseduring that year.
Management has determined that the contingentitiabrising from the arbitration of having to payore than the amounts paid as 2008
interim prices is not material.

The parties also agreed on interim prices for 20@fich the Company is paying for this year’s vol@migor inventory accounting
purposes, the Company is recording its cash catgruhe interim pricing agreement. Management leésrohined that there is both a
contingent liability and a contingent asset thatldaesult from 2009 phosphate rock prices deteehiny the arbitration to be higher or lower
than the price being used for inventory purposespectively. Management has concluded that théngparit liability of having to pay
amounts above the 2009 interim prices is neith@ote nor probable, but is reasonably possible. #Mhhnagement believes the more likely
outcome of the arbitration will be rock prices helthe interim prices paid, in light of the posit®af the parties reflected in the arbitration
filings and the quantity of phosphate rock purcdadsg Mexicana, management has estimated the aggregatingent liability of having to
pay more than the 2009 interim prices ranges $Yt6 million.

In July 2009, OCP added counterclaims to the atiin, asserting that Mexicana breached the ropglgwagreement by (i) purchasing
MGA (merchant green acid) for processing in 2009iatation of a phosphate rock exclusivity provisjdii) failing in 2009 to buy historical
guantities of rock in violation of a minimum purdgeobligation OCP asserts is not stated, but idiéehpn the rock requirements contract,
and (iii) reducing its phosphate rock orders fod2Without providing a one year notice under a Enestatute OCP claims is applicable.
Mexicana intends to defend against the counterslaiigorously and assert multiple defenses it bebewill dispose of the claims.

On October 28, 2009, OCP requested the arbittaingl to order Mexicana to furnish interim secunitghe amount of $68.4 million
pending the arbitration, which is now expecteddndaude after counterclaim-related hearings scleetiidr July 2010. Management believes
the OCP request meets none of the applicable s@mfla this type of interim relief, is totally umnranted by the facts and circumstances of
the arbitration case, and the likelihood of theteabtribunal approving security for the OCP caenataims in the nature and magnitude of
OCP’s request is remote. Accordingly, Mexicana wijorously oppose the request. The tribunal hasoyestablish a schedule for briefing,
and possibly hearings, on this issue. Thus farpdme| has indicated that decisions on both priisages and the counterclaims will be
rendered after the conclusion of the July 2010ihgar
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Management has determined that any contingentitiabiassociated with the counterclaims are neitinebable nor estimable. These
contingent liabilities are either remote or reastypossible, and that the most likely outcome fmding of no liability. Therefore, no accrt
is necessary or has been made. OCP’s requestcianityehas not altered management’s evaluatiomefcbunterclaims or the arbitration case
as a whole.

Although contingent liabilities from the OCP arhtibn require no accrual at this time, if the ceuclaims were determined adversel
Mexicana, it is possible they could have a matexiderse effect on Innophos’ results of operatmrfinancial condition, and/or cash flows.

Mexican CNA Water Tax Clain

Nature and Extentn November 2004, our Mexican subsidiary, InnopRosfatados, or Fosfatados, received notice fronCtha of the
Fresh Water Claims relating to water usage at matfacoalcos, Veracruz, Mexico plant. As initiadgsessed, the claims extended from
1998-2002, but subsequently the 1998 claim wagmi&ted to be beyond the applicable statute of &tiohs. As now assessed, the claims
through 2002 total approximately $23.2 million atrent exchange rates as of October 23, 2009,dimgubasic charges of $7.1 million and
$16.1 million for interest, inflation and penaltiédanagement believes that Fosfatados has valiestfas challenging the Fresh Water Clai
and that matter is being defended vigorously.

Rhodia Indemnity Confirmeé\s a result of favorably concluded litigation inWe& ork state courts against Rhodia, S.A. and atfig,
or the New York Litigation, concerning their indeification obligation for CNA claims as “taxes” undine agreement by which we
purchased our business from those parties, Innogtfaly indemnified against the Fresh Water Clgjras well as any like claims pertaining
to periods prior to the closing date of purchasggust 13, 2004, were such liabilities to be susihin

Further ProceedingsThe Fresh Water Claims are currently pending radenation from appeals in the Mexican fiscal caystem. On
October 28, 2009, Innophos learned informally thatTax Court ruling on remand was likely to beided unfavorably as to some or all of
the remaining issues. The written decision is npeeted to be served by the Court for a numberesfks, at which time we will evaluate the
matter in light of the basis upon which the Tax @alecided each issue. Mexican counsel has conirimet an appeal of any adverse
decision will be filed in due course, and that cerlrmay recommend instituting constitutional artteotlaims as part of the appeal or in
separate proceedings. Therefore, we anticipaterthiter to continue for some time in the appeatess.

A final determination of the Fresh Water Claims meguire further appeals to the Mexican SupremeiGmd remands to the CNA or
to lower courts, a process that might continuestwreral years. In the event that the appeals were tecided against us and Rhodia were
then unable to pay on its indemnification obligatipour subsidiary could be required to satisfydginent for the entire amount claimed.

Possible Post-2002 Claimi.the CNA Fresh Water Claims were sustained ferghriod now at issue, it is possible that the GioAld
seek to claim similar higher duties, fees and otharges for fresh water extraction and usage #0664 on into the future (2003 is believe:
be beyond the statute of limitations), or the FA¥32 Fresh Water Claims. Management estimatesthatints involved would be
approximately $7.2 million of additional basic ches to date at current exchange rates, $8.0 militating to interest, inflation, and
penalties, and, under current operating conditiapproximately $0.4 million of additional basic c@s per year at current exchange rates.
Based on the judgments in the New York Litigatioe, believe Rhodia would be responsible to indemuagyully (as additional taxes) for
those Post-2002 Fresh Water Claims arising on faré¢he August 2004 closing, representing appraxahy $0.9 million of basic charges
and $1.4 million relating to interest, inflatiomdapenalties at current exchange rates. Moreoitaguggh not included in our court judgments,
we believe Rhodia is required to indemnify us futly post-closing “lossesfaused by breaches of covenants set forth in treeagent, whicl
could represent the remainder of the Post-2002hRéater Claims exposure. Rhodia has contested inifieation responsibility for those
breaches, but its motion for partial summary judgite dismiss our claims was denied by the New dek court in January 2009. It is
possible that the New York Litigation will procetaltrial or further motions to resolve remaininguss.

Based upon advice of counsel and our review oiNA Fresh Water Claims and the Post-2002 Fresh MZigéms, the facts and
applicable law, management has determined thalityais reasonably possible, but is neither prdeaior reasonably estimable. Accordingly,
we did not establish a liability on the balanceettes of September 30, 2009. As additional infolmnais gained, management will reassess
the potential liability and establish any loss reseas appropriate. The ultimate liability amouatiicl be material to our results of operations
and financial condition. Furthermore, given Rhoslifihancial condition, we cannot be sure we wilimaately collect amounts due from
Rhodia under our indemnification rights, even thotlgey have been confirmed by court judgments.
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Mexican Water Discharge Duti

On August 18, 2009, Fosfatados was served withresolutions from the CNA seeking water dischangged, fees and other charges
relating to the Company’s Coatzacoalcos, Veradvexico plant for the period 2002-2005 and amountmng total of $2.5 million at current
exchange rates. The resolutions affirm that thatflas complied with the relevant parameters idigsharge permits, or CPDs, but assert
Fosfatados has not met a different set of dischstayedards in general duties tables that limitdiseharge of various contaminants and set
fees payable for exceeding those limits.

Management believes that the duties tables arapplicable because they were superseded by the, @B were specifically
designed and issued for the plant, and with whiehGompany complies. In addition, management bedighere are other meritorious
defenses, including the applicable statute of Ations, to claims based on the duties tables. Qoalec 21, 2009, Fosfatados filed an
annulment proceeding in the Mexican fiscal coustasm seeking to void the resolutions.

Management believes that any claim or liabilityte extent relating to periods prior to the 206¢uasition of our business from
affiliates of Rhodia, would be fully indemnified Rhodia. We put Rhodia on notice of an indemnifaratlaim and, thus far, it has declined
responsibility for the claim and the opportunityctintrol the defense. Therefore, Innophos has tzkkm the defense of this matter, reserving
its indemnity rights against Rhodia.

Other Legal Matters

In June 2005, our subsidiary, Innophos Canada, Was contacted by representatives of The Mosaifgaamy (a division of Cargill
Corporation), or Mosaic, seeking a meeting to disdhe status of an ongoing remedial investigatimhclean-up Mosaic is conducting at its
former fertilizer manufacturing site located noothinnophos’ Pt. Maitland, Ontario Canada plarg.sithe remediation is being overseen by
the Provincial Ministry of Environment, or MOE. Mais stated that, in its view, we and Rhodia (o@decessor in interest prior to
August 2004) were responsible for some phospharogpound contamination at a rail yard between thepihos and Mosaic sites, and will
be asked to participate in the clean-up. We haterahined that this contingent liability is neith@obable nor estimable at this time, but
liability is reasonably possible. We have notifRRdodia of the Mosaic claim, and we will seek alpagpriate indemnification.

In March 2008, Sudamfos S.A., or Sudamfos, an Aigemphosphate producer, filed a request for atiin before the ICC
International Court of Arbitration, Paris, Franoe|CC, of a commercial dispute with Mexicana. Suftss claimed Mexicana agreed to sell
Sudamfos certain quantities of phosphoric acidifdivery in 2007 and 2008, and sought an orderireguMexicana to sell approximately
12,500 metric tons during 2008 in accordance withdlaimed agreement. Subsequently, Sudamfos withtlre request for arbitration. In
October 2008, Mexicana filed a lawsuit in Mexicaagt Sudamfos to collect approximately $1.2 millirepresenting the contract price for
prior deliveries of acid that Sudamfos had refusegay. In October 2009, Sudamfos answered theaadicounterclaimed for $3.0 million
based upon the agreement alleged in the arbitregiquest to sell additional acid, which agreemeakigana denies. Management has
determined that the outstanding receivable is fedijectible, and that the contingent liability findhe Sudamfos counterclaim is remote, and
therefore no accrual is required.

In addition, we are party to legal proceedings emmtractual disputes that arise in the ordinarys®wf our business. Except as to the
matters specifically discussed, management doelsatietve that these matters represent probablditied However, these matters cannot be
predicted with certainty and an unfavorable resoiudf one or more of them could have a materiakaske effect on our business, results of
operations, financial condition, and/or cash flows.

Other contingencies

Under ASC 360, “Property, Plant, and Equipmentigdived assets including property, plant and eougipt and amortized intangible
assets are evaluated and reviewed for impairmeaheser events or changes in circumstances indicatéhe carrying amount of an asset or
asset group may not be recoverable. Recoverabfliigsets to be held and used is measured by aacimmp of the carrying amount of the
assets to the undiscounted future cash flows eggd¢otbe generated by the asset or asset groum Wisecomparison indicates that
impairment must be recorded, the impairment recghis the amount by which the carrying amounhefdssets exceeds the fair value o
assets.

The determination whether or not assets are imghainel the corresponding useful lives of these lorag assets requires significant
judgment. The development of future cash flow ptpms requires management estimates related éodsted sales and expected c
trends. To the extent that changes in businesstommgloccur or other management decisions are rnedeesult in adjusted management
projections or alternative use of the assets, impait losses or accelerated depreciation may écduture periods.
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In our Mexican operations, we continue to monitoareges in circumstances where the undiscountedfloaehwould indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group mapaatcoverable. The uncertainty in phosphate rocleg volume decreases, sales price
erosion, and the reduced operating rates for tle#zaooalcos plant were included in managementimatds and are consistent with
management’s expectations. Despite worsening donditn 2009, no changes in circumstances or eves thus far indicated the carrying
amounts of the Company'’s long-lived assets wereewverable from undiscounted cash flows. Consatyyeve did not perform any
impairment test of our lontived assets in 2009 as a follow up to the tesfopered for year end 2008. The carrying value of@eatzacoalcc
plant was approximately $86 million at SeptemberZ3®9. The undiscounted cash flows of the STPEi(B0 Tripolyphosphate) asset group
exceeded their carrying value by 31%, while theptsset groups exceeded their carrying valueghifisantly greater margins.
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13. Pension:
Net periodic benefit expense for the United Stateas for the three months ended September 30,:2009

2009
Pensior
Other
benefits benefits Total
Service cos $ — $ 88 $ 88
Interest cos 26 41 67
Expected return on asst (24 — (24)
Amortization of prior service co: — 65 65
Amortization of unrecognized (gains)/los: — (20) (20)
Net periodic benefit expen: $ 2 $ 174 $17€

Net periodic benefit expense for the United Statass for the three months ended September 30,2008

2008
Pensior
Other
benefits benefits Total
Service cos $ — $ 82 $ 82
Interest cos 29 37 66
Expected return on asst (27) — (27)
Amortization of prior service co: — 6 65
Amortization of unrecognized (gains)/los: (2) (26) (28)
Net periodic benefit expen: $ — $ 15¢ $15¢
Net periodic benefit expense for the United Statess for the nine months ended September 30, 2009:
2009
Pensior
Other
benefits benefits Total
Service cos $ — $ 264 $264
Interest cos 78 12z 20C
Expected return on asst (72 — (72)
Amortization of prior service co: — 19¢€ 19¢
Amortization of unrecognized (gains)/los: — (62 (62
Net periodic benefit expen: $ 6 $ 52C $52€
Net periodic benefit expense for the United Statess for the nine months ended September 30, 2008:
2008
Pensior
Other
benefits benefits Total
Service cos $ — $ 24t $24¢
Interest cos 86 11C 19¢
Expected return on asst (80) — (80)
Amortization of prior service co: — 19¢€ 19¢
Amortization of unrecognized (gains)/los: (6) (75) (82)
Net periodic benefit expen: $ — $ 47¢€ $47¢€

We made our entire cash contributions of $2.6 amilfior our U.S. defined contribution plan during fiirst quarter of 2009 for the plan
year 2008. The U.S. defined benefit cash contrdmstiwill be, at a minimum, approximately $0.1 noitlifor 2009 which payment was me

in the second quarter of 2009.
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Net periodic benefit expense for the Canadian planthe three months ended September 30, 2009:

2009
Pensior
Other
benefits benefits Total
Service cos $ 36 $ 9 $ 45
Interest cos 11C 16 12€
Expected return on asst (247 — (1479)
Amortization of transition obligatio — 7 7
Amortization of prior service co 5 — 5
Amortization of unrecognized (gains)/los: 19 1 20
Exchange rate chang (25E) 62 (193
Net periodic benefit expen: $(232) $ 95 $(137)
Net periodic benefit expense for the Canadian planthe three months ended September 30, 2008:
2008
Pensior
Other
benefits benefits Total
Service cos $ 57 $ 15 $ 72
Interest cos 11€ 14 132
Expected return on asst (179 — (179
Amortization of initial transition obligatio — 9 9
Amortization of unrecognized (gains)/los: 21 1 22
Exchange rate chang 161 (472) 12C
Net periodic benefit expen: $ 18: $ (2 $ 181
Net periodic benefit expense for the Canadian planthe nine months ended September 30, 2009:
2009
Pensior
Other
benefits benefits Total
Service cos $ 10¢ $ 28 $ 137
Interest cos 33C 49 37¢
Expected return on asst (441 — (447
Amortization of transition obligatio — 19 19
Amortization of prior service co: 13 — 13
Amortization of unrecognized (gains)/los: 57 3 60
Exchange rate chang (428) 11% (319
Net periodic benefit expen: $(360) $ 214 $(14¢€)
Net periodic benefit expense for the Canadian planthe nine months ended September 30, 2008:
2008
Pensior
Other
benefits benefits Total
Service cos $ 172 $ 44 $ 217
Interest cos 35¢ 43 39¢
Expected return on asst (529 — (529
Amortization of initial transition obligatio — 26 26
Amortization of unrecognized (gains)/los: 63 5 68
Exchange rate chang 23C (60) 17C
Net periodic benefit expen: $ 297 $ 58 $ 35E

We made cash contributions to our Canadian detiegetfit plan of $1.4 million during the nine montgraled September 30, 2009. We
expect to make additional cash contributions to@amadian defined benefit plans of $0.3 millionidgthe remainder of 2009.

20



Table of Contents

INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

14. Mexican Workforce Reductions:

For the nine months ended September 30, 2009, dhg&ny recorded pre-tax charges of $1.8 milliorsforerance benefits under ASC
712-10 (formerly SFAS No. 112) for the eliminatioh38 positions. Approximately, $1.3 million of tkeverance benefits charge was
recorded in the second quarter of 2009 and the @aynpecorded a $0.4 million severance benefitsgehar the first quarter of 2009 which
resulted in the elimination of 23 positions. In idd, the Mexican operations have in-effect a tenapy workforce reduction program for the
hourly personnel resulting in a $0.4 million chacdevhich $0.3 million was recorded in the secondrer of 2009. The combined $2.2
million pre-tax charge, $1.8 million was includeddost of goods sold and $0.4 million was includeselling, general and administrative
costs. The estimated future cash expendituresraraierial as most cash outlays have occurred Semtember 30, 2009.

15. Segment Reporting:

The Company discloses certain financial and suppteary information about its reportable segmetgemnue by products and reven
by geographic area. Operating segments are dedimedmponents of an enterprise about which sepdisatete financial information is
evaluated regularly by the chief operating decisi@ker, in order to decide how to allocate resaiez®l assess performance. The primary
key performance indicators for the chief operatiegision maker are Sales and Operating Income Chingpany reports its operations in tr
reporting segments—United States, Mexico and Carestdh of which sells the entire portfolio of protiu

For the three months ended September 30, 2009 United States Mexico Canada Eliminations Total

Sales $ 119,107 $ 34,46¢ $ 8,35¢ $ $161,93:
Intersegment sale 15,81( 10,467 17,84( (44,117 —
Total sales $ 134,917 $ 44,93¢ $26,19¢ $ (44,117 $161,93:
Operating incom: $ 2463t $ 197¢ $1,88(C $ — $ 28,49:
For the three months ended September 30, 2008 United States Mexico Canada Eliminations Total

Sales $ 146,15: $133,73: $11,88¢t $ — $291,77:
Intersegment sale 7,687 11,307 16,56¢ (35,567) —
Total sales $ 153,84. $145,03¢ $28,45: $ (35,567 $291,77:
Operating incom: $ 4534: $ 62,357 $ 5,14t $ — $112,84°
For the nine months ended September 30, 2009 United States Mexico Canada Eliminations Total

Sales $ 356,88t $132,31¢ $30,31: $ — $519,51°
Intersegment sale 47,81 14,15¢ 53,83( (115,799 —
Total sales $ 404,69° $146,47: $84,14: $(115,79) $519,51°
Operating incomi $ 94,12¢ $ 7,79 $13,29¢ $ — $115,21¢
For the nine months ended September 30, 2008 United States Mexico Canada Eliminations Total

Sales $ 356,43. $333,14. $28,73¢ $ — $718,31(
Intersegment sale 22,80¢ 24,19¢  49,47¢ (96,487) —
Total sales $ 379,23° $357,34. $78,21f $ (96,487 $718,31(
Operating incom: $ 63,25« $155,39: $ 7,87C $ — $226,51°

21



Table of Contents

INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

16. Condensed Combining Financial Statements:

The following condensed combined financial dataresented to segregate the assets, liabilitiestesdts of operations and cash flows
of the US operations (the “Guarantors”) and theddan and Mexican operations (the “Non-guarantotafjophos Inc. has issued debt and
the Guarantor subsidiary is a 100% wholly ownedsiliary of Innophos Inc. The Non-guarantors are%0@¢holly-owned subsidiaries of the
Guarantors. Innophos, Inc. and the Guarantor siavgidill fully and unconditionally and jointly anseverally, guarantee the Company’s
obligations under the CompasySenior Subordinated Notes due 2014. Investmersstisidiaries are accounted for by the guararsiogithe
equity method of accounting. The Non-guarantorgaesented on a combined basis. The principal aomdpiadjustments are to eliminate
intercompany balances and transactions.

INNOPHQOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of September 30, 2009

(In thousands)

Adjustments
Guarantor Non-Guarantor and
Innophos, Inc. Subsidiary Subsidiary Eliminations Total
ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 55608 $ 3 $ 6694 % — $122,55¢
Restricted cas — — 1,74¢ — 1,74¢
Accounts receivable, n 270,67¢ — 243,30¢ (447,444 66,537
Inventories 56,57 — 47,69’ — 104,27(
Other current asse 21,88t — 13,89: (81) 35,69
Total current asse 404,73¢ 3 373,59: (447,529 330,80¢
Property, plant and equipment, | 102,06¢ — 107,69. — 209,75¢
Goodwill 7,231 — 44,46¢ — 51,70¢
Investment in subsidiarie 245,23! 197,77: — (443,006 —
Intercompany note 29,39¢ — — (29,396 —
Intangibles and other assets, 39,45: — 12,35t — 51,80¢
Total asset $ 828,12¢ $197,77: $ 538,10¢ $(919,92)  $644,08(
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Short term borrowings and current portion of I-term debi $ — $ — $ — $ — $ —
Accounts payable, trade and ot 255,36( — 227,21t (447,44% 35,13:
Other current liabilitie 24,45t — 16,53¢ (81) 40,91(
Total current liabilities 279,81! — 243,75. (447,529 76,04
Long-term deb 190,00( — 29,39¢ (29,39¢) 190,00(
Other lon¢-term liabilities 15,77¢ — 19,72¢ — 35,50
Total stockholder equity 342,53: 197,77: 245,23. (443,006 342,53:
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $ 828,12t $197,77: $ 538,10¢ $(919,92)  $644,08(
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)

(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash and cash equivalel
Restricted cas
Accounts receivable, n
Inventories
Other current asse
Total current asse
Property, plant and equipment, |
Goodwill
Investment in subsidiarie
Intercompany note
Intangibles and other assets,
Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt
Accounts payable, trade and ot
Other current liabilitie:
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Other lon¢-term liabilities
Total stockholdel' equity
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity
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As of December 31, 2008
(In thousands)

Adjustments

Guarantor Non-Guarantor and

Innophos, Inc. Subsidiary* Subsidiary Eliminations Total
$ 61,298 $ 5 $ 63,320 $ — $124,62:
214,94: — 193,43: (328,84 79,53:
71,14¢ — 74,16¢ — 145,31(
22,31 — 12,14« (46%) 33,99
369,69:- 5 343,06: (329,309 383,45¢
111,34¢ — 119,07 — 230,42:
7,231 — 44,46¢ — 51,70¢
231,70¢ 193,12( — (424,829 —
79,46 — — (79,467 —
43,42 — 11,09! — 54,51¢
$ 842,87¢ $193,12! $ 517,69t $(833,59¢ $720,10:
$ 72611 $ — 3 - $ — $ 72,61¢
192,47( — 173,04° (328,84) 36,67¢
25,54¢ — 14,14¢ (467) 39,23:
290,63: — 187,19¢ (329,309 148,52
243,88 — 79,46: (79,467) 243,88’
16,52¢ — 19,33¢ — 35,86¢
291,83: 193,12! 231,70 (424,829 291,83:;
$ 842,87¢ $193,12! $ 517,69t $(833,59¢ $720,10:
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements (Unauditl)
(Dollars in thousands, except where noted)

INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the three months ended September 30, 2009
(In thousands)

Adjustments
Guarantor Non-Guarantor and
Innophos, Inc. Subsidiary Subsidiary Eliminations Total
Net Sales $ 134,91! $ — $ 71,13 $ (44,11 $161,93:
Cost of goods sol 96,01 — 62,30« (44,115 114,20
Gross Profit 38,90( — 8,83( — 47,73(
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrative expenses anb 14,26 1 4,97¢ — 19,231
Total operating expens 14,26 1 4,97¢ — 19,231
Operating incom: 24,63¢ (@D} 3,85¢ — 28,49
Interest expense, n 4,34¢ — 261 — 4,60
Foreign exchange gail (42) — (202) — (249)
Other income — — — — —
Equity (income) los: (2,81€) (1,397 — 4,20 —
Income (loss) before income t 23,15( 1,39( 3,79¢ (4,207 24,12¢
Provision for income taxe 7,104 — 97¢ — 8,08:
Net income (loss $ 16,04¢ $ 1,39( $ 2,817 $ (4,209) $ 16,04¢
INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the nine months ended September 30, 2009
(In thousands)
Adjustments
Guarantor Non-Guarantor and
Innophos, Inc. Subsidiary Subsidiary Eliminations Total
Net Sales $ 404,69¢ $ — $ 230,61! $(115,799)  $519,51°
Cost of goods sol 271,72¢ — 196,66 (115,79) 352,59¢
Gross Profit 132,97( — 33,94¢ — 166,91¢
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrative expenses anB | 38,83¢ 2 12,85¢ — 51,69¢
Total operating expens 38,83¢ 2 12,85¢ — 51,69¢
Operating incom: 94,13: 2 21,09( — 115,21¢
Interest expense, n 14,95¢ — 1,192 — 16,14¢
Foreign exchange (gains) los: (14) — (509) — (51¢)
Other income — — — — —
Equity (income) los: (13,636 (4,657 — 18,28 —
Income (loss) before income t 92,82¢ 4,64¢ 20,40z (18,287) 99,58¢
Provision for income taxe 28,92 — 6,764 — 35,68¢
Net income (loss $ 63,90/ $ 4,64¢ $ 13,63¢ $ (18,287 $ 63,90
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the three months ended September 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Adjustments

Guarantor Non-Guarantor and
Innophos, Inc. Subsidiary Subsidiary Eliminations Total
Net Sales $ 153,84: $ — $ 173,49. $ (35,56)  $291,77.
Cost of goods sol 98,61¢ — 102,13« (35,56) 165,18
Gross Profit 55,22¢ — 71,35¢ — 126,58:
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrative expenses anb | 9,88z — 3,854 — 13,73¢
Total operating expens 9,88 — 3,85¢4 — 13,73¢
Operating (loss) incom 45,34 — 67,50¢ — 112,84
Interest expense, n 6,00¢ — 1,221 — 7,23(
Foreign exchange loss 26C — (1,130 — (870
Other income — — (152 — (152
Equity (income) los: (46,527) (43,156 — 89,67¢ —
Income (loss) before income t 85,59¢ 43,15¢ 67,56¢ (89,679 106,63¢
Provision for income taxe 12,00 — 21,04 — 33,04
Net income (loss $ 73,59t $ 43,15¢ $ 46,52 $ (89,67 $ 73,59
INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statement of Operations
For the nine months ended September 30, 2008
(In thousands)
Adjustments
Guarantor Non-Guarantor and
Innophos, Inc. Subsidiary Subsidiary Eliminations Total
Net Sales $ 379,23 $ = $ 435,55 $ (96,48)  $718,31(
Cost of goods sol 278,39: — 261,24 (96,487) 443,15!
Gross Profit 100,84« — 174,31: — 275,15!
Operating expense
Selling, general and administrative expenses anB | 37,58¢ — 11,04¢ — 48,63t
Total operating expens 37,58¢ — 11,04¢ — 48,63t
Operating (loss) incom 63,25¢ — 163,26. — 226,51
Interest expense, n 16,48:¢ — 4,497 — 20,98(
Foreign exchange losses (gai 122 — (99€) — (874
Other income — — (390 — (390
Equity (income) los: (111,259 (106,09) — 217,35( —
Income (loss) before income t 157,90: 106,09° 160,15: (217,35() 206,80:
Provision for income taxe 12,16 — 48,89¢ — 61,05¢
Net income (loss $ 145,74 $ 106,09° $ 111,25 $(217,35()  $145,74.
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the nine months ended September 30, 2009

(In thousands)

Adjustments
Guarantor Non-guarantor and
Innophos, Inc Subsidiary Subsidiary Eliminations Total
Cash Flows from operating activiti
Net income (loss $ 63,90 $ 4,64¢ $ 13,63¢ $ (18,28) $ 63,90/
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rmshc
provided by operating activitie
Depreciation and amortizatic 21,22: — 16,99: — 38,21«
Amortization of deferred financing charg 2,28¢ — — — 2,28¢
Deferred income taxes (benefi (1,249 — (1,165 — (2,419
Deferred profit sharini — — (470 — (470
Shar-based compensatic 2,47(C — — — 2,47(
Equity (income) loss in non-guarantor
subsidiaries (13,636 (4,657) — 18,28 —
Changes in assets and liabiliti
Increase in restricted ca — — (1,74 — (1,74
(Increase) decrease in accounts receiv (55,739 — (49,879 118,60« 12,99t
Increase in inventorie 14,57 — 26,46 — 41,04(
(Increase) decrease in other current as 427 — (1,749 (382) (1,709
Increase (decrease) in accounts pay 62,89( — 54,16 (118,60 (1,54%)
Increase in other current liabiliti (1,099 — 2,39( 382 1,67¢
Changes in other loi-term assets and liabilitie 9,42¢ — 22¢ — 9,651
Net cash provided from operating activit 105,49( (2 58,87 — 164,36!
Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure (8,999 — (3,729 — (12,727)
Net cash used for investing activiti (8,999 — (3,729) — (12,727)
Cash flows from financing activitie
Repayment from subsidiari 51,52¢ — — (51,529 —
Net change in borrowing with Innophaos, | — — (51,52%) 51,52¢ —
Return of capital to pare (26,167) — — — (26,167)
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock
options 2 — — — 2
Deferred financing cos (2,050 — — — (1,050
Principal payment of term loa (126,500 — — — (126,500
Net cash provided from (used for) financing acibs (102,18) — (51,529 — (153,709
Net change in cas (5,690 2 3,62¢ — (2,067
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 61,29t 5 63,32: — 124,62:
Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe $ 55,60¢ $ 3 $  66,94¢ $ — $ 122,551
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INNOPHOS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

For the nine months ended September 30, 2008
(In thousands)

Cash Flows from operating activiti
Net income (loss
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rmshc
provided by operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic
Amortization of deferred financing charg
Deferred income taxes (benefi
Deferred profit sharini
Shar-based compensatic
Equity (income) loss in ni-guarantor subsidiarie

Changes in assets and liabiliti

(Increase) decrease in accounts receiv
Increase in inventorie
Decrease (increase) in other current as
Increase (decrease) in accounts pay
(Decrease) increase in other current liabili
Changes in other loi-term assets and liabilitie

Net cash provided from operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Capital expenditure

Net cash used for investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Repayment from subsidiari
Net change in borrowing with Innophos, |
Return of capital to pare
Excess tax benefits from exercise of stock opt
Principal payment of term loai

Net cash used for financing activiti

Net change in cas

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢

Cash and cash equivalents at end of pe

Adjustments
Guarantor Non-guarantor and
Innophos, Inc Subsidiary Subsidiary Eliminations Total

$ 145,74. $106,09° $ 111,25 $(217,35()  $145,74.
24,124 — 16,24 — 40,37:
1,774 — — — 1,774
3,89( — (977) — 2,917

— — 41C — 41C

2,34C — — — 2,34C

(111,25)  (106,09) — 217,35( —
(70,670 - (75,900 102,55: (44,019
(11,267 — (41,144 — (52,417
1,25¢ - (1,117) (247) (99
63,02t — 48,13: (102,55) 8,60¢
(93%) — 31,16( 247 30,47:
(4,925) — 3,221 — (1,69¢)
43,10¢ — 91,30: — 134,40
(8,18() - (5,05¢) - (13,239
(8,180 — (5,05¢) — (13,239)

4,00( — — (4,000 —

- - (4,000) 4,00( -
(13,95() — — — (13,95()
1,42( — — 1,42(
(1,500 — — — (1,500
(10,030 - (4,000) - (14,030)
24,89t — 82,24 — 107,13¢
3,657 6 11,90¢ — 15,56¢

$ 2855 $ 6 $ 9414 $ — $122,70

27




Table of Contents

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT 'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION & RE SULTS OF OPERATIONS

This discussion contains forward-looking statemaiisut our markets, the demand for our products serdices and our future results.
We based these statements on assumptions thansiel@oreasonable. Actual results may differ matérifrom those suggested by our
forward-looking statements for various reasons includimgse discussed in the “Risk Factors” as containedur 2008 Annual Report on
Form 1(-K and “Forward-Looking Statements” sections of theport.

Overview

Innophos is a leading North American producer efcsgity phosphates. Most specialty phosphatesightylcustomized, application-
specific compounds that are engineered to meedmmestperformance requirements. Specialty phosplaagesften critical to the taste, texture
and performance of foods, beverages, pharmaceutimall care products and other applications. kamgle, specialty phosphates act as
flavor enhancers in beverages, electrolytes intsgliinks, texture additives in cheeses, leaveagents in baked goods, calcium and
phosphorus sources for nutritional supplements;maeeutical excipients and cleaning agents in fmaxte.

Below is a summary chart of the corporate structureof our direct subsidiaries.

Imnophos
Haldings, Inc

100%

Innoghas Investmenls
Haoldings, Inc

100%,

nnophes, Inc.'"

{Registrant)

100% |

Innophos Innophos
Canada, Inc! Mexlco Hobdings, LLCY

‘[ 100%:

Innophos Mexicana
sA dec iy

| 100%

Maxican
Subsidiaries'"

(1) = Operating Campanies

{2] = Guarantor subsidiary of Innephos, Inc. Senlor Subordinated Moles

Recent Trends and Outlook

On a sequential basis, third quarter 2009 volumekiding GTSP fertilizer sales increased by 2.8%e U.S. and Canada business
delivered a 6.6% increase and Mexico declined 6964 Selling prices declined 8.9% sequentially,cavehlg rate of decline compared to
earlier quarters. In the third quarter 2009 apprately $1 to $2 million of the expected $5 to $Tlion raw material cost structure increase
was incurred on a constant volume and mix basith, thhe remainder expected to be incurred in thetfoquarter. Mexica restructured fixe
costs were in line with expectations.

Although it is often difficult to predict due to lidays and customers’ year end inventory plannmgnagement currently expects fourth
guarter volumes, excluding GTSP fertilizer saledé similar to the third quarter 2009. Sellingcps are expected to decline at a rate
significantly lower than that experienced in thiedtguarter. As noted above, the Company expexfoitrth quarter 2009 raw material cost
structure to increase $4 to $5 million primarilyaasesult of the anticipated phosphoric acid sagranix. Capital expenditures for 2009 are
now expected to finish in the $18 to $20 millionge; lower than previously indicated, partly dudinaing differences on project spending
and partly a result of reprioritizing projects cmant with present business needs. Spending wiillicue on the food grade quality convers
of Mexico’s phosphoric acid that is still targefed first quarter 2010 completion.
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Looking beyond the fourth quarter, demand and pgicutlooks are still uncertain. However, if th@eamic outlook continues to
improve, the Company should see some volume rego8etling prices will remain under pressure, thoag expected reduced rates of
decline.

As previously disclosed, the phosphate rock supghgement between OCP and Innophos’ Mexican s@angjdnnophos Mexicana,
will terminate after September 9, 2010. In thatarelg Innophos will continue addressing developmiantse OCP situation, analyzing the
interrelationships between the Company’s sourcirafegies, their ongoing efforts and expected figupply outcomes and the resultant
effects on the Company’s future results of operatiand cash flows. Innophos is continuing its ¢fftw develop intermediate and long term
supply arrangements for its Mexican operations frouitiple sources, has conducted successful tésiéepnate raw material samples and is
in advanced discussions with several potential kengp Innophos is also evaluating for developnmbatCompany’s newly acquired Mexican
phosphate rock mining concessions as a long tepplysource. Management continues to believe tharderly transition from OCP as a
single source supplier of rock is in the best syt interests of the Company. However, duringrémainder of the current OCP contract, and
while uncertainty remains as to the competitivertédanophos’ contract rock pricing, conditions Mgibntinue to be difficult for the Mexican
operation.

As previously disclosed, Innophos Mexicana and @€&Parbitrating differences concerning 2008 an®2@@k pricing under the
supply agreement and counterclaims by OCP filetllp 2009 that Mexicana breached that agreememalylement believes such claims are
without merit.

Recently, OCP requested that the arbitral tribim&aris order Innophos Mexicana to furnish intesmcurity in the amount of $68.4
million pending the arbitration, which will concladhfter further hearings in July 2010. Managemefiebes the OCP request meets none of
the applicable standards for this type of relied @&ntotally unwarranted by the facts and circumsts of the arbitration case. Accordingly,
Innophos Mexicana will vigorously oppose the requ€be tribunal has yet to establish a scheduldfi@fing, and possibly hearings, on the
issue.

Management believes the likelihood of the arbitriélunal approving security for the OCP counterolin the nature and magnitude of
OCP’s request is remote.

OCP’s request for security has in no way alteredagament’s evaluation of the arbitration case erctbunterclaims, or altered its
determination that no accruals are warranted.

Historical Performance
Results of Operations
The following table sets forth a summary of the @amy’s operations and their percentages of totedmee for the periods indicated.

Three months ended
September 30,

Three months ended
September 30,

2009 2008

Amount % Amount %
Net sales $ 161.C 100.C $ 291.¢ 100.(
Cost of goods sol 114. 70.5 165.2 56.€
Gross profit 47.7 29.t 126.€ 43.¢

Operating expense
Selling, general and administrati 18.¢ 11.€ 13.2 4.€
Research & Development Expen: 0.4 0.2 0.5 0.2
Operating incom: 28.t 17.€ 112.¢ 38.1
Interest expense, n 4.6 2.8 7.2 2.t
Foreign exchange gains, t (0.2 (0.2) (0.9 (0.3
Other income — — (0.7 (0.0
Provision for income taxe 8.1 5.C 33.C 11.2
Net income $ 16.C 9.8 $ 73 25.2
Nine months ended Nine months ended
September 30, September 30,
2009 2008

Amount % Amount %
Net sales $ 519t 100.C $ 718.: 100.(
Cost of goods sol 352.¢ 67.€ 443.1 61.7
Gross profit 166.¢ 32.1 275.2 38.2

Operating expense

Selling, general and administrati 50.2 9.7 47.1 6.€
Research & Development Expen: 15 0.3 1.€ 0.2
Operating incom: 115.2 22.2 226.5 31.t
Interest expense, n 16.1 3.1 21.C 2.



Foreign exchange gains, t (0.5) (0.2) (0.9 (0.2)

Other income — — (0.9 (0.7
Provision for income taxe 35.7 6.9 61.1 8.5
Net income $ 63.C 12.2  $145.7 20.2
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Three months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2008
Net Sales

Net sales represent the selling price of the prisduet of any customer-related rebates, plusHteigd any other items invoiced to
customers. Net sales for the three months ende@i@bpr 30, 2009 were $161.9 million, a decreas89.9 million, or 44.5%, as compared
to $291.8 million for the same period in 2008. Bgllprice decreases had a negative impact on reveih24.7% or $72.0 million, largely in
Mexico and mostly in STPP & Other Products andflagtiPhosphoric Acid. Volume and mix effects upemanue had a negative effect of
19.8% or $57.9 million which occurred across atidarct lines and all reporting segments. On a wuastd) the average selling price for all
Innophos products decreased by 24.4% compareddi®, 20d total volume shipped decreased by 26.6%.

The Company calculates pure selling price dollaiaveces as the selling price for the current penddus the selling price for the prior
period, and then multiplies the resulting sellimigg difference by the prior period volume. Thdisglprice dollar variance is then divided by
the prior period sales dollars to calculate the@etage change. Volume/mix variance is calculassithe total sales variance minus the selling
price variance. The following table illustrates fbe three months ended September 30, 2009 therage changes in net sales by reportable
segment compared with the same period in 2008, dimd) the effect of price and volume/mix effect®opevenue:

Price Volume/Mix Total
United State: (0.2%) (18.2%) (18.5%)
Canads (11.6%) (18.1%)  (29.7%)
Mexico (52.6%) (21.6%)  (74.2%)

The following table illustrates for the three mastinded September 30, 2009 the percentage changest fales by major product lir
compared with the same period in 2008, includirgyefiect of price and volume/mix effects upon raxen

Price Volume/Mix Total
Purified Phosphoric Acii (29.€%) (39.(%) (68.€%)
Specialty Salts and Specialty Aci (4.8%) (10.5%) (15.2%)
STPP & Other Produc (56.€%) (15.7%) (72.5%)

Gross Profit

Gross profit represents net sales less cost ofgsold. Gross profit for the three months endede®eiper 30, 2009 was $47.7 million, a
decrease of $78.9 million, or 62.3%, as comparegl 6.6 million for the same period in 2008. Groergin decreased to 29.5% for the tt
months ended September 30, 2009 versus 43.4%da@atine period in 2008. The change in gross prafit primarily due to lower selling
prices which had an unfavorable impact of $72.0iom] Unfavorable sales volume and mix impact upgrenue was mostly offset by
favorable raw material costs, restructured manufax costs and favorable exchange rates whicHtegbsin a net unfavorable impact of $6.9
million.

Operating Expenses and Research and Development

Operating expenses consist primarily of sellingiegal and administrative, and R&D expenses. Fottttee months ended
September 30, 2009, these costs were $19.2 milioincrease of $5.4 million, or 39.1%, as companehll 3.8 million for the same period in
2008. The increase is primarily due to $3.3 millfonour enterprise resource planning (ERP) systathbusiness redesign project, $1.3
million increase in legal expenses related to oGPQrbitration, and $0.8 million increase in alatcosts.

Operating Income

Operating income for the three months ended SepeBt) 2009 was $28.5 million, a decrease of $68#lBn, or 74.7%, as compared
to $112.8 million for the same period in 2008. Gytiig income as a percentage of net sales decread@d6% versus 38.7% for the same
period in 2008.

Interest Expense, net

Net interest expense, including deferred finan@nrtization expense, for the three months endete8wer 30, 2009 was $4.6
million, a decrease of $2.6 million, compared to2#million for the same period in 2008. This deseea primarily due to the pay off of the
remaining balance of the Term Loan in the first b&2009 and fees incurred in 2008 associated thighfourth amendment to our credit
facility.

Foreign Exchange

Foreign exchange gain for the three months endpteBder 30, 2009 was $0.2 million compared to a ga#0.9 million for the same
period in 2008. The U.S. dollar is the functionafrency of our Mexican and Canadian operations.séquently, foreign exchange gain or
loss is recorded on remeasurement of non-U.S.rdidlaominated monetary assets and liabilities. $adéts and losses fluctuate from period
to period as the foreign currencies strengthenemken against the U.S. dollar and the amount ofuh& dollar denominated assets and
liabilities increases or decreases.
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Provision for Income Taxes

The effective income tax rate on income beforesaxas 33% for the three months ended Septemb@089,compared to 31% for the
same period in 2008. The change in the effectixedte is a result of increased earnings in higéwejurisdictions such as the United States
versus Mexico and a full valuation allowance on et deferred tax assets in the U.S. as of SepteB@h008.

Net Income

Net income for the three months ended Septembe2®I9 was $16.0 million, a decrease of $57.6 nmijlmompared to net income of
$73.6 million for the same period in 2008, duehte factors described above.

Nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2008
Net Sales

Net sales represent the selling price of the prisduet of any customer-related rebates, plushteigd any other items invoiced to
customers. Net sales for the nine months endec®éetr 30, 2009 were $519.5 million, a decreasd 888 million, or 27.7%, as compared
to $718.3 million for the same period in 2008. Bgliprice increases had a positive impact on rezaiB.0% or $57.8 million that occurred
primarily in Specialty Salts & Specialty Acids atwda lesser extent in Purified Phosphoric Acid. BEPOther Products, which showed a net
selling price decrease, was negatively affecteddnfines in granular triple super-phosphate (GTERilizer co-product prices. Volume and
mix effects upon revenue had a negative effec6of% or $256.6 million which occurred across aficarct lines and reporting segments. On
a unit basis, the average selling price for alblpimos products increased by 2.1% compared to 20@8& total volume shipped decreased by
29.2%.

The following table illustrates for the nine mon#heded September 30, 2009 the percentage changessales by reportable segment
compared with the same period in 2008, includirgyefiect of price and volume/mix effects upon raxen

_Price. Volume/Mix Total
United State: 36.6% (36.7%) 0.1%
Canade 35.2% (29.6%) 5.5%
Mexico (25.1%) (35.2%) (60.2%)

The following table illustrates for the nine monthsded September 30, 2009 the percentage changest feales by major product lines
compared with the same period in 2008, includirggefiect of price and volume/mix effects upon raxen

_Price. Volume/Mix Total
Purified Phosphoric Acii 10.1% (60.(%) (49.€%)
Specialty Salts and Specialty Aci 33.8% (31.2%) 2.5%
STPP & Other Produc (36.8%) (20.(%) (56.8%)

Gross Profit

Gross profit represents net sales less cost ofgsold. Gross profit for the nine months ended &aper 30, 2009 was $166.9 millior
decrease of $108.3 million, or 39.4%, as compavekP¥5.2 million for the same period in 2008. Gnoesgin decreased to 32.1% for the
nine months ended September 30, 2009 versus 3&.3#ef same period in 2008. The change in grod# pras due to unfavorable sales
volume and mix impact upon revenue and higher ratenal costs, which had a combined unfavorableachpf $173.7 million. Gross profit
was negatively impacted by a $1.8 million inventamte-down for GTSP; the Company has $0.8 mil®@hSP inventory remaining as of
September 30, 2009. As a result of reduced operadites in Mexico, the company took a charge o8 $dillion for Mexican workforce
reduction costs and a charge of $1.1 million faicgpated unfulfilled contractual natural gas puas commitments, including the
unfavorable variance to current market prices, xpin December 2009. These unfavorable effectg\partially offset by higher selling
prices which had a favorable impact of $57.8 mili8.8 million favorable exchange rate impact fydsbm our Mexican peso based costs,
and $0.9 million lower depreciation expense. Inelich 2008 results were $1.3 million expense fectzeduled Geismar, LA plant
maintenance outage, and $1.3 million asset impaitmtizgarge for two obsolete production units.

Operating Expenses and Research and Development

Operating expenses consist primarily of sellingiegal and administrative, and R&D expenses. Fonthe months ended
September 30, 2009, these costs were $51.7 milioimcrease of $3.0 million, or 6.2%, as compaoe¥8.7 million for the same period in
2008. The increase is due to $5.7 million for auteeprise resource planning (ERP) system and bssireglesign project, $2.8 million
increased legal expenses related to our OCP dibitrand $0.9 million increases in all other cqsstially offset by $2.1 million lower legal
and other fees which were incurred in 2008 to cgmapth the DOJ STPP document request subpoena,iliGn lower professional fees
used to support growth and other corporate initésti and $2.0 million favorable exchange rate ihfrac our Mexican peso based costs.

31



Table of Contents

Operating Income

Operating income for the nine months ended SepteBhe2009 was $115.2 million, a decrease of $1fillBon, or 49.1%, as
compared to $226.5 million for the same periodd0& Operating income as a percentage of net daleased to 22.2% versus 31.5% for
the same period in 2008.

Interest Expense, net

Net interest expense, including deferred finananrtization expense, for the nine months endedeSdyer 30, 2009 was $16.1
million, a decrease of $4.9 million, compared td $2million for the same period in 2008. This deseis primarily due lower average
interest rates and the lower average balance ofeun Loan resulting from the $54.0 million prinaippayments made in March 2009 mostly
to satisfy the excess cash flow requirement ofovedit agreement and the $72.5 million payment ayM009 to pay off the balance of the
Term Loan, and fees incurred in 2008 associateld thé fourth amendment to the credit facility. Tddgcreases were partially offset by
accelerated deferred financing related to the excash flow payment and the pay off of the Termn.oa

Foreign Exchange

Foreign exchange gain for the nine months endete8dger 30, 2009 was $0.5 million compared to $0IBom for the same period in
2008. The U.S. dollar is the functional currencyof Mexican and Canadian operations. Consequédotkign exchange gain or loss is
recorded on remeasurement of non-U.S. dollar demated monetary assets and liabilities. Such gaiddasses fluctuate from period to
period as the foreign currencies strengthen or emagainst the U.S. dollar and the amount of ndh-Jollar denominated assets and
liabilities increases or decreases.

Provision for Income Taxes

The effective income tax rate on income beforegaxas 36% for the nine months ended Septembe08@, @mpared to 30% for the
same period in 2008. The change in the effectiveate is a result of increased earnings in higéejurisdictions such as the United States
versus Mexico and a full valuation allowance on et deferred tax assets in the U.S. as of Sepiedih008.

Net Income

Net income for the nine months ended Septembe2(BI) was $63.9 million, a decrease of $81.8 mi)Jlmompared to net income of
$145.7 million for the same period in 2008, du¢hi factors described above.
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Segment Reporting

The company reports its operations in three reppregments—United States, Mexico and Canada,afachich sells the entire
portfolio of products. The primary performance tatbrs for the chief operating decision maker atessand operating income, with sales on
a ship-from basis. The following table sets fotta historical results of these indicators by segmen

Three months ende: Three months ende:

September 30, September 30,
2009 2008 Net Sales % Chang

Segment Net Sales
United State: $ 119,10° $ 146,15 (18.5%)
Mexico 34,46¢ 133,73: (74.2%)
Canads 8,35¢ 11,88¢ (29.7%)
Total $ 161,93: $ 291,77 (44.5%)
Segment Operating Income
United State: $ 24,63¢ $ 45,34:
Mexico 1,97¢ 62,357
Canade 1,88( 5,14¢
Total $ 28,49: $ 112,84°
Segment Operating | ncome % of net sales
United State: 20.7% 31.(%
Mexico 5.7% 46.6%
Canads 22.5% 43.%%

Nine months ended Nine months ended

September 30, September 30,

_ 2009 __ 2008 Net Sales % Chang
Segment Net Sales
United State: $ 356,88t $ 356,43 0.1%
Mexico 132,31¢ 333,14 (60.2%)
Canads 30,31 28,73¢ 5.5%
Total $ 519,51 $ 718,31( (27.1%)
Segment Operating Income
United State: $ 94,12¢ $ 63,25¢
Mexico 7,79¢ 155,39¢
Canade 13,29t 7,87(
Total $ 115,21¢ $ 226,51°
Segment Operating | ncome % of net sales
United State! 26.2% 17.7%
Mexico 5.% 46.6%
Canads 43.% 27.4%

Three months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the three months ended September 30, 2008
Segment Net Sales:

In the United States net sales decreased 18.5¥%ddhree months ended September 30, 2009 whenatethpiith the same period in
2008 due to lower volume and mix across all prodines as selling prices were flat in total.
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In Mexico net sales decreased 74.2% for the thremtims ended September 30, 2009 when comparedheitsaime period in 2008.
Selling prices decreased sales by 52.6% which ceducross all product lines. Volume and mix impgein revenue was a decrease of
21.6% which occurred primarily in Purified Phosphdkcid and STPP & Other Products.

In Canada net sales decreased 29.7% for the thwathmended September 30, 2009 when comparedhveitbatme period in 2008.
Selling prices decreased sales by 11.6% which eedyrimarily in Purified Phosphoric Acid. Volumadamix impact upon revenue was a
decrease of 18.1% which occurred across all prdihes.

Overall, the decreased volume and mix impact upernue seen in all segments is indicative of tHaced demand caused by the
economic slowdown along with increased competitiressure and some reformulation.

Segment Operating Income % of Net Sales:

The 10.3% decrease in the United States for theetimonths ended September 30, 2009 compared wigathe period in 2008 is
mainly due to unfavorable volume and mix impactsrugevenue, higher manufacturing expenses duevémtary reductions, and higher
operating expenses mainly for our enterprise resoplanning (ERP) system and business redesigagroj

The 40.9% decrease in Mexico for the three montke@ September 30, 2009 compared with the samedpier2008 is due to
decreased selling prices, decreased volume aneéffeiets upon revenue, and higher operating expenaady for legal expenses related to
the OCP arbitration case. This was partially offgetower restructured manufacturing expenses dasi@able exchange rate impact from
our Mexican peso based costs.

The 20.8% decrease in Canada for the three monttedeSeptember 30, 2009 compared with the samedpi@r2008 is due to lower
selling prices, unfavorable volume and mix impawtgevenue and higher raw material costs.

During the three month period ending Septembef809 depreciation and amortization expense wasr$illibn in the United States,
$0.5 million in Canada and $5.4 million in Mexico.

Nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2008
Segment Net Sales:

In the United States net sales increased 0.1%hénine months ended September 30, 2009 when cecthpéth the same period in
2008. Selling prices increased sales by 36.8% whichirred across all product lines. Volume and imigact upon revenue was a decrease of
36.7% which occurred across all product lines.

In Mexico net sales decreased 60.3% for the ninethsoended September 30, 2009 when compared wetbattme period in 2008.
Selling prices decreased sales by 25.1%, main§TiRP and Other Products. Volume and mix impact upeanue was a decrease of 35.2%
which occurred across all product lines.

In Canada net sales increased 5.5% for the nineghm@mded September 30, 2009 when compared witkatine period in 2008. Selling
price increased sales 35.3% with increases aclgsoéduct lines. Volume and mix impact upon revenas a decrease of 29.8% with
decreases across all product lines.

Segment Operating |ncome % of Net Sales:

The 8.7% increase in the United States for the minaths ended September 30, 2009 compared witsetine period in 2008 is mainly
due to favorable selling prices partially offsetunyfavorable volume and mix impacts upon revenighédr raw material costs, and higher
manufacturing expenses. Operating expenses increlaseto the enterprise resource planning (ERRgsyand business redesign project.
Included in 2008 results were expenses for a s¢bédbeismar, LA plant maintenance outage, an asgetirment charge for two obsolete
production units, legal and other fees to complthwiie DOJ STPP document request subpoena, anespiofial fees used to support growth
and other corporate initiatives.

The 40.7% decrease in Mexico for the nine montliedrSeptember 30, 2009 compared with the samedp@r008 is due to
unfavorable selling prices, unfavorable volume amiklimpacts upon revenue, increased raw materitiscand increased operating expenses
mainly for legal expenses related to the OCP atiitn case. Gross profit was negatively impacted By.8 million inventory write-down of
GTSP. Also, as a result of reduced operating rat&exico, the Company took a charge of $2.2 millfor Mexican workforce
reorganization costs and a charge of $1.1 millmrahticipated unfulfilled contractual natural gmschase commitments, including the
unfavorable variance to current market prices, xpin December 2009. There was a $9.9 milliorofable exchange rate impact from our
Mexican peso based costs.

The 16.5% increase in Canada for the nine monttied8eptember 30, 2009 compared with the samedpier008 is due to increased
selling prices partially offset by unfavorable wele and mix impact on revenue.
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During the nine month period ending September 8093 epreciation and amortization expense was $81lian in the United States,
$1.6 million in Canada, and $15.4 million in Mexico

Liquidity and Capital Resources
The following table sets forth a summary of the @amy’s cash flows for the periods indicated.

Nine months ende: Nine months ende:
September 30, September 30,
2009 2008
Operating Activities $ 164.4 $ 134.¢
Investing Activities (12.9) (13.29)
Financing Activities (153.%) (24.0

Nine months ended September 30, 2009 compared to nine months ended September 30, 2008

Net cash provided from operating activities was4b4énillion for the nine months ended September2B09 as compared to $134.4
million for the same period in 2008, an increasedsh of $30.0 million. The increase in operatiatyvéies cash resulted from favorable
changes of $108.2 million in net working capitatl&11.3 million in non-current accounts, partialf§set by unfavorable changes of $81.8
million in net income as described earlier and $ilfion in non-cash items affecting net incometNash provided from operating activities
for our Mexican operations was $45.2 million foe thine months ended September 30, 2009 as comfue$86.2 million for the same period
in 2008, a decrease in cash of $41.0 million. Téerelase in operating activities cash for our Mexiogerations resulted mainly from
unfavorable changes of $101.4 million in net incqradtially offset by favorable changes of $63.3lionil in net working capital.

The change in net working capital is a source shaa $50.7 million in 2009 compared to a use IG&6f $57.4 million, an increase in
cash of $108.2 million. The increase in cash isfyalue to decreases in accounts receivable amhiory, and increased other current
liabilities, partially offset by decreased accoupdyable and increased other current assets. Tmgehn net working capital for our Mexican
operations is a source of cash of $25.7 millioB00@9 compared to a use in 2008 of $37.6 millioninarease in cash of $63.3 million mainly
due to decreases in inventory.

Net cash used for investing activities was $12.[fianifor the nine months ended September 30, 2608pared to $13.2 million for tl
same period in 2008, a decrease in the use ofaf&&h5 million. Net cash used for investing adtes for our Mexican operations was $3.2
million for the nine months ended September 3092@0mpared to $3.3 million for the same perio@008, a decrease in the use of cash of
$0.1 million.

In the second quarter of 2009 the Company launeheghterprise resource planning, or ERP, systenbasidess process redesign
project to upgrade its systems technology and fawe its position as a reliable specialty phospisapplier. The Company had spent
approximately $7.9 million as of September 30, 2868 future expenditures on the ERP project arearg to total approximately $14 to
$17 million by the end of 2010, with the majoritiythis spending anticipated as capital expenditures

The Company is investing to grow its food, beverage pharmaceutical phosphate business, espegéiyraphically, and also to
diversify its raw material supply long term. Prdfeare underway in the U.S. to debottleneck andbase production capabilities of various
specialty salts. Additionally, in conjunction witie investment in the Coatzacoalcos facility to entvan double its existing food grade
purified phosphoric acid capacity by the first ggaR010, the site personnel have conducted suat@ssduction tests of several additional
food grade salts to enable a shift in focus frotedgency to the multiple food market segments skbyesalts and acid.

Innophos currently estimates that full exploratimsts to a proven reserves standard for the Samtuirigo deposit could require
expenditures of $10 to $15 million over a threeryzexiod. This estimate includes mineral rightsrpents, taxes, mineral resource
measurement, beneficiation process design and edimplof feasibility studies. Full expenditures wabanly occur if interim milestone goals
were successfully attained. It is estimated th@928nd 2010 expenditures will be approximately@&$10 million, with efforts primarily
focused on the Santo Domingo deposit. Innophosidtstéo seek one or more partners for these effautsanticipates no difficulties in
completing the exploration phase without a partmers

Management projects total 2009 capital expendittorepproximate $18 to $20 million.

Net cash from financing activities for the nine rtfenended September 30, 2009 was a use of $15Bighimitompared to a use of $1«
million for the same period in 2008, a decreaseaish of $139.7 million. This is due to $125.0 roillihigher Term Loan principal payment:
satisfy the excess cash flow requirement for 20@Bsabsequently to pay off the remaining balandhef
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Term loan as described below, $1.1 million defefredncing charges on the new loan and securitgexgent, $1.4 million lower excess tax
benefit from exercise of stock options, and $12illon increase in return of capital to parent. Mash from financing activities for our
Mexican operations for the nine months ended Seaptei30, 2009 was a use of $51.5 million, compaoeal use of $4.0 million in for the
same period in 2008, a decrease in cash of $47ibmrfor repayment of intercompany debt obligasomhich are eliminated in consolidatir

We believe that on-hand cash combined with caskrgéed from operations will be sufficient to meet obligations such as debt
service, tax payments, capital expenditures andiwgicapital requirements for at least the next\we@enonths. We expect to fund all these
obligations through our existing cash and our fitoperating cash flows. As noted in the recentdseand outlook section, management is
targeting a minimum goal of remaining profitableMexico until the rock sourcing situation improwed is reprioritizing capital expenditure
projects consistent with present business needsseTactions are expected to result in Mexico miainiga adequate cash balances for its
operating needs over the short-term until the lssimeturns to a range of market prices for phdspbak. However, future operating
performance for the Company is subject to prevgiénonomic and competitive conditions and othetofa¢ such as the ultimate resolution of
our phosphate rock arbitration, that are uncerthihe cash flows and other capital resourceslabts to the Company are insufficient to ft
our debt and other liquidity needs, the Company hee to take alternative actions that differ fritlia Company’s current operating plan.

On May 22, 2009, our wholly owned subsidiary Inneghinc. and its wholly owned subsidiary, Innopl@sada, Inc. entered into a
Loan and Security Agreement (the “Loan Agreemewith certain lenders (collectively, the “Lendergitluding Wachovia Bank, National
Association, as agent. The Loan Agreement provicdesompany with a revolving line of credit fronethenders of up to $65.0 million in
the aggregate, with a $20 million letter of creslib-facility, terminating on May 22, 2013. The ambactually available to the Company may
be less than the maximum credit and will vary friimme to time depending on, among other factorsatheunt of its net eligible inventory
and accounts receivable as calculated for purpafsthe Loan Agreement. The obligations of the Conypander the Loan Agreement are
secured by the accounts receivable, inventory dmel @ssets of Innophos, Inc. and Innophos Caniadanot including equipment or real
property. Innophos Inc.’s Mexicbased subsidiaries are excluded from certain oftivenants under the Loan Agreement, do not guathe
indebtedness of Innophos, Inc. and Innophos Camadaincurred under it, and do not furnish colfatén connection with it.

As of September 30, 2009, the Company had $511®m#xcess availability, above the minimum excasailability requirements, as
calculated in accordance with the Loan Agreemedithare was no amount outstanding on the revoleradit line. A total of $1.8 million in
face amount of letters of credit were issued utlgesub-facility to support instruments outstandinger a prior credit facility terminated on
May 22, 2009.

The Company was party to a Credit Agreement dateaf August 13, 2004, as subsequently amendedZ@@t Credit Facility”). On
May 22, 2009, the Company entered into a Terminatigreement with the agent and J P Morgan Chask,BaA. and National City Bank,
the latter two as issuing banks relating to lettdrsredit, pursuant to which, among other thirtge,2004 Credit Facility was terminated, the
Company paid the $72.7 million of outstanding témam balance (principal and accrued interest) foaish on hand, and security held by the
lenders on substantially all the Company’s propetd released.

On April 13, 2009 the Company purchased $10.0 omlbf the 9.5% Senior Unsecured Notes due ApriR20t $6.5 million. The $3.5
million retirement gain is reflected as interestdme in our Consolidated Statement of Operatioisérsecond quarter of 2009. The
Company also recorded accelerated deferred fingromats of approximately $0.2 million in the secaop@rter of 2009.

Restricted cash consists of escrow funds agrebd tieposited in connection with a dispute betwherCompany and a third party. The
escrow funds will be disbursed in accordance withdgreed terms upon the satisfaction of the disput

Years ending December 31,

Contractual Obligations Total 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 Thereafter
2004 Senior Subordinated Not

Due 2014 (1 274,31: — 16,86: 16,86: 16,86: 16,86: 206,86:
Future service pension benet 7,74¢ 444 52¢€ 581 657 73C 4,81(
Other (2) 800,63(  84,24¢ 83,54( 83,54( 83,54( 83,54(  382,22:
Operating lease 16,941 4,26( 3,67¢ 3,02¢ 2,09¢ 1,45(C 2,43¢
Total contractual cash obligations $1,099,63i $88,95( $104,60¢ $104,01. $103,15' $102,58. $596,33:

(1) Amounts include fixed rate interest payments a7 898 for years 2009 and thereaf
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(2) Represents minimum annual purchase commitmentgytodw materials and 2009 energy commitments fropphers.
(3) Does not reflect the $56.0 million remaininddvere of the Senior Unsecured Notes which wereets&y our ultimate parent, Innophos
Holdings, Inc. on April 16, 2007. Annual cash iet&trpayments would be approximately $5.3 mill

Critical Accounting Estimates

There have been no material changes from thealrditcounting estimates previously disclosed in20@8 Annual Report on Form 10-
K other than described below.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the acquisit@st over the fair value of net assets of the bssieg acquired. ASC 350,
“Intangibles—Goodwill and Other” requires periodic tests of the impairment of dedl. ASC 350 requires a comparison, at least afyu
of the net book value of the assets and liabiléigsociated with a reporting unit, including godfwiith the fair value of the reporting unit,
which corresponds to the discounted cash flowk®féporting unit, in the absence of an active etail’hen this comparison indicates that
impairment must be recorded, the impairment recaghis the amount by which the carrying amounhefdssets exceeds the fair value of
these assets. The annual goodwill impairment reisexonducted during the fourth quarter of eachr.y& continue to monitor the estimates
and circumstances included in our projectionstierDecember 31, 2008 goodwill impairment analyesig] any significant changes in our
estimates would require the Company to conduchtarim goodwill impairment test. Our monitoringtbg year-to-date actual 2009 results
indicates that, while market and business conditltave worsened, the cash flow estimates remasistent with those made during the
annual December 31, 2008 goodwill impairment analy@onsequently, since that time, we did not genfan interim goodwill impairment
test.

Fair values for goodwill testing are estimated gsardiscounted cash flow approach. Significanhesiés in the discounted cash flow
approach include the cash flow forecasts for edcuoreporting units (Mexico, U.S. and Canadag, discount rate and the terminal value.
The five year cash flow forecasts of the compangfmrting units is based upon management’s estiatdatee date of the assessment, which
incorporates managements long-term view of seflirices, sales volumes for Innophos’ products, key materials and energy costs, and our
operating cost structure. The aggregated fair vafurir reporting units was reconciled to our madagitalization at the date of the
assessment, plus a suitable control premium. Oukehaapitalization during fourth quarter of 200&eeded the book value of our equity.
The terminal value was determined by applying bessrgrowth factors for each reporting unit whiah iarline with longer term historical
growth rates, to the latest year for which a foséexists.

Solely for the purpose of goodwill valuation forrddexico reporting unit, the 2008 goodwill impairmenalysis included estimates
addressing changes in phosphate rock pricing, wesakim the markets served by those operationspfdsaditional business which in part is
a result of the softness in the fertilizer markats] operating the Coatzacoalcos, Mexico complexilastantially reduced levels. Our 2008
goodwill impairment analysis included: (i) phosphatck price assumptions for 2009 based at theiimghosphate rock price currently be
paid; (i) for the first three quarters of 2010sased phosphate rock prices estimated to be béle®a09 interim price being paid, trending
towards an estimated market price; and (iii) foe 2010 and thereafter, assumptions that Mexicoadip@s would return to an estimated
market price for phosphate rock. The December 828 yoodwill impairment analysis also consideredtdrmination of the 1992 phosphate
rock supply contract with OCP as likely. As a résalanagement believes a triggering event for gabdesessment did not occur upon
OCP’s August 2009 notice of non-renewal of thattcmt in September 2010 and that the terminatiannwaeffect on our goodwill
impairment analysis. The reporting unit’s cash fimedel is estimated to be below pre-2008 level9&2@flected unusual market conditions
as discussed in our previous reports and whiclmeatrexpected to be replicated in the long-term)hwnprovement occurring as our
phosphate rock price returns to market pricingdfh2 Revenue levels are estimated to have a skgbvery in 2011 and estimated to return
to a historical growth rate of 3% per annum in 204/2 applied operating margin percentages slighglpw our historical trends and used a
3% growth rate to calculate the terminal valuedar Mexican reporting unit. We used a 12% discaatg, which is above our weighted
average cost of capital and consistent with owrprear goodwill impairment test. Based on thisuasibn, we determined that the fair values
of our reporting units exceeded their carrying ealand no goodwill impairment charge was required.

As of December 31, 2008, the Mexican reporting bad a carrying value, including goodwill, of $22dlion. The fair value of the
reporting unit exceeded its carrying value by agpnately 10%. In addition, if we were to decredse long-term growth rate or increase the
discount rate used in the calculation by 1%, thavald still be no goodwill impairment for the Mexic reporting unit.

Given the current economic environment and una#iéa surrounding the impact on our Mexican busiredgactors such as market
conditions affecting our selling prices, sales wois, and raw material costs, the ultimate resaludfoour phosphate rock arbitration, and
other factors not limited to those enumerated, &reot be sure that the estimates and assumptiedsiuthe goodwill impairment analysis
will prove to be accurate predictions of the futBegnificant changes in assumptions will influetice goodwill impairment analysis and v
result in goodwill impairment charges in futureipds.
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Long-lived assets

Under ASC 360, “Property, Plant, and Equipmentigidived assets including property, plant and eougipt and amortized intangible
assets are evaluated and reviewed for impairmeaheser events or changes in circumstances indicatehe carrying amount of an asset or
asset group may not be recoverable. Recoverabfliigsets to be held and used is measured by aacimmp of the carrying amount of the
assets to the undiscounted future cash flows exgdotbe generated by the asset or asset groum Wisecomparison indicates that
impairment must be recorded, the impairment reczaghis the amount by which the carrying amounhefdssets exceeds the fair value o
assets.

The determination whether or not assets are imghainel the corresponding useful lives of these llorag assets requires significant
judgment. The development of future cash flow prtpms requires management estimates related égdsted sales and expected ¢
trends. To the extent that changes in businesstomm&loccur or other management decisions are nfedeesult in adjusted management
projections or alternative use of the assets, impait losses or accelerated depreciation may écduture periods.

In our Mexican operations, we continue to monitoareges in circumstances where the undiscountedfloaehwould indicate that the
carrying amount of an asset or asset group mapaatcoverable. The uncertainty in phosphate rocleg volume decreases, sales price
erosion, and the reduced operating rates for tte#z@ooalcos plant were included in managementimatis and are consistent with
management’s expectations. Despite worsening donditn 2009, no changes in circumstances or eves thus far indicated the carrying
amounts of the Company'’s long-lived assets wereewverable from undiscounted cash flows. Consatyyeve did not perform any
impairment test of our lontived assets in 2009 as a follow up to the tesfopered for year end 2008. The carrying value of@eatzacoalcc
plant was approximately $86 million at SeptemberZ3®9. The undiscounted cash flows of the STPEi(B0 Tripolyphosphate) asset group
exceeded their carrying value by 31%, while theptsset groups exceeded their carrying valueghifisantly greater margins.

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

We are exposed to certain market risks as paniobngoing business operations. Primary exposuagde changes in interest rates, as
borrowings under our revolving credit facility wilear interest at floating rates based on LIBOBerbase rate, in each case plus an
applicable borrowing margin. We will manage ouenesst rate risk by balancing the amount of fixe-end floating-rate debt. For fixed-rate
debt, interest rate changes do not affect earringash flows. Conversely, for floating-rate dehterest rate changes generally impact our
earnings and cash flows, assuming other factorbelteconstant.

At September 30, 2009, we had $190.0 million ppatamount of fixed-rate debt and a $65.0 milliemalving credit facility, of which
we had $51.8 million available, which has not bdeawn upon. In addition, Innophos Holdings, Incs B&6.0 million of senior unsecured
notes. As all of the business for Innophos Holdjtgs. is transacted through Innophos, Inc. andiitssidiaries, Innophos Holdings, Inc. is
dependent on the earnings and the distributiomod$ from Innophos, Inc. and subsidiaries.

Changes in economic conditions could result in éighterest rates, thereby increasing our intexegénse and other operating expe!
and reducing our funds available for capital inwestt, operations or other purposes. In additiGukestantial portion of our cash flow mus
used to service debt, which may affect our abititynake future acquisitions or capital expendituvé#e may from time to time use interest
rate protection agreements to minimize our exposuneterest rate fluctuation. Regardless of heggesmay experience economic loss and a
negative impact on earnings or net assets as i oé&oterest rate fluctuations.

We do not currently hedge our commodity, interast or currency rate risks.

We have purchased forward natural gas contractsharkiquire us to purchase a portion of our montialiyiral gas usage requirement
a fixed price. These contracts are for periodse&rper 2008 through December 2009, and apply tdJdsi, Canadian and Mexican facilities.
As a result of lower operating rates in our Mexicperations, we have recorded a $2.5 million chargke second quarter of 2009 for these
anticipated unfulfilled contractual natural gasghase commitments, including the unfavorable vagan current market prices, expiring in
December 2009.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rates

The U.S. dollar is the functional currency of then@dian and Mexican operations. Accordingly, tregserations’ monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at current exchangesiaten-monetary assets and liabilities are tramdlat historical exchange rates, and revenue
and expenses are translated at average exchaegenat at historical exchange rates for the rel&teehue and expenses of non-monetary
assets and liabilities. All translation gains aoskkes are included in net income.

Our principal source of exchange rate exposurelirfareign operations consists of expenses, sutdbas expenses, which are
denominated in the foreign currency of the couirtryhich we operate. A decline in the value of th&. dollar relative to the local currency
would generally cause our operational expensesi¢pkarly labor costs) to increase (converselygalitie in the value of the foreign currency
relative to the U.S. dollar would cause these egpgito decrease). We believe that normal exchagdluctuations consistent with recent
historical trends would have a modest impact onesgpenses, and would not materially affect ourrfaial condition or results of operations.
Nearly all of our sales are denominated in U.Slageland our exchange rate exposure in terms e$ sal’enues is minime
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Inflation and changing prices

Our costs and expenses will be subject to inflaéiod price fluctuations. Significant price fluctioats in raw materials, freight, and
energy costs, could have a material effect on inantial condition and results of operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We do not have any relationships with unconsolidi@tetities or financial partnerships, such as iestivften referred to as structured
finance or special purpose entities, which wouldehlaeen established for the purpose of facilitatifihalance sheet arrangements or other
contractually narrow or limited purposes.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Control and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and phaes (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(#jecSecurities Exchange Act
of 1934) that are designed to provide reasonalsierasce that information required to be reportethénCompany’s consolidated financial
statements and filings is recorded, processed, suin@d and reported within the periods specifiethanrules and forms of the Securities and
Exchange Commission, or SEC, and that such infoomad accumulated and communicated to the Comgamgnagement, including its
principal executive officer and principal financ@ficer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisioagarding required disclosure. Any controls
and procedures, no matter how well designed anchtgge can provide only reasonable, not absolstrance of achieving the desired
control objectives.

As of September 30, 2009, the Company completezlaluation under the supervision and with the piaition of the Company’s
management, including the Company’s principal etieewfficer and principal financial officer, of ¢éheffectiveness of the design and
operation of the Company’s disclosure controls grmdtedures. Based upon that evaluation, the PahEipecutive Officer and Principal
Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s ltisare controls and procedures are effective atehsonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal coowenl financial reporting during or with respecthe third quarter of 2009 that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, the Company’s internal control o¥i@ancial reporting.

PART Il

ITEM1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information set forth in Note 12 to our condated condensed financial statements, “CommitmamsContingenciesgontained il
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q is incorpordtedein by reference.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes from theaisofs previously disclosed in our 2008 Annual Repn Form 10-K other than as
mentioned below.

I nternational Operations

We have significant production operations in Mexdcwl Canada and believe that revenue from salegleuhe U.S. will continue to
account for a material portion of our total revefrethe foreseeable future. There are inhereksiiis international operations, including
currency fluctuations and devaluations, econométlarsiness conditions that differ from US cyclassettled political conditions and
communication and translation errors due to languzagriers. Among those additional risks potentiaffecting our Mexican operations are
changes in local economic conditions, currency hlmtmns, disruption from political unrest and @itflty in enforcing agreements due to
differences in the Mexican legal and regulatonjimegs compared to those of the U.S. Risks that ama@ian operations may be subject to
include changes in laws or regulations differingnirtrends in the U.S. and currency fluctuations @ehluations.

Our overall success as a multinational businessrd#p in part, upon our ability to succeed in diffg economic, social and political
conditions. Among other things, we are faced witkeptial difficulties in staffing and managing lbcgerations, and we have to design local
solutions to manage credit risks posed by localotners and distributors. We may not continue t@sad in
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developing and implementing policies and stratetfiasare effective in each location where we dsifess. These risks are not limited to
those countries in which we operate facilities. &oample, our Mexican operations and indirectly @eismar operations, (where we recently
exercised an option extending to July 2021 our{tmmm purchase agreement for merchant green aoikeced from phosphate rock), are
supplied with phosphate rock from Morocco, inclgdterritories under disputed Moroccan sovereigtaints, and both could be subject to
the risk of adverse affects that may arise fronallpolitical unrest.

As a U.S. corporation, we are subject to the ragula imposed by the Foreign Corrupt Practices &cECPA, which generally prohit
U.S. companies and their intermediaries from makimgroper payments to foreign officials for the pose of obtaining or keeping business.
We sell many of our products in developing cousttigough sales agents and distributors that arsuiect to our disciplinary procedures.
While we and our subsidiaries are committed to cetidg business in a legal and ethical manner amdamnmunicate our policies to all who
do business with us, we cannot be sure that alttord party distributors or agents remain in ftdimpliance with the FCPA at all times.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS
None.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES
None.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
None.

ITEM5. OTHER INFORMATION
None.

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS
a) Exhibits. The following exhibits are filed or funished as part of this report:

Exhibit No. Description

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer datdbvember 4, 2009 pursuant to Section 302 of thb&Be-Oxley Act of 2002
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer dat&tbvember 4, 2009 pursuant to Section 302 of thb&ea-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officer datdbvember 4, 2009 pursuant to Section 906 of thb&e-Oxley Act of 2002
32.2* Certification of Principal Financial Officer datétbvember 4, 2009 pursuant to Section 906 of thbe&3a-Oxley Act of 200z

* Not to be deemed filed for purposes of SectionfliB® Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwsigkject to the liability of the
section, nor deemed to be incorporated by refergmioeny filing under that Act or the SecuritiestAdf 1933.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly causisd¢port to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

INNOPHOS, INC.

/s/ Randolph Gress

By: Randolph Gres

Its: Chief Executive Officer and Direct:
(Principal Executive Officer

Dated: November 4, 20(

INNOPHOS, INC.

/s/ Neil Salmon

By: Neil Salmon

Its: Vice President and Chief Financial Offic
(Principal Financial Officer

Dated: November 4, 20(
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit No. Description

31.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer datdbvember 4, 2009 pursuant to Section 302 of thea&3m-Oxley Act of 200z
31.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer datétbvember 4, 2009 pursuant to Section 302 of thbe&Ba-Oxley Act of 200z
32.1 Certification of Principal Executive Officer datdbvember 4, 2009 pursuant to Section 906 of thes3m-Oxley Act of 200z
32.2 Certification of Principal Financial Officer dat&tbvember 4, 2009 pursuant to Section 906 of thb&ea-Oxley Act of 200z
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Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS
I, Randolph Gress, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Quarterly Report on ForrQLOf Innophos, Inc. (“the registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioriny untrue statement of a material fact or dméttate a material fact necessal
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amngtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsgorecaused such disclosure controls and procsdorge designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatmeg to the registrant, including its consolidhsibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragiisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyelis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportititat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the igant’s internal control over financial reportiremd

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anldalve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 4, 2009 By: /s/ RANDOLPH G RESS
Randolph Gress
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)




Exhibit 31.2
I, Neil Salmon, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on ForrfL6f Innophos, Inc. (“the registrant”);

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiominy untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessal
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememid,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officers anaré responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%nd internal control over financial reportirag @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitlerally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenttisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contiots procedures, as of the end of the period coveyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegggnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regits fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimeaport) that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the igtgant’s internal control over financial reportiramd

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers anlave disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(&) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig’s ability to record, process, summarize aqbrt financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Dated: November 4, 2009 By: s/ NEIL S ALMON
Neil Salmon
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




Exhibit 32.1
Certification Pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxly Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. § 1350)
I, Randolph Gress, certify that:

1. the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 1@Qtfe period ended September 30, 2009 (the “R§péartly complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applécalf the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as alednand

2. the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
Innophos, Inc. at the dates and for the periodisated.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided Innophos, imt véll be retained by Innophos,
Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchangai@ission or its staff upon request.

The undersigned expressly disclaims any obligatampdate the foregoing certification except asineqgl by law.
Date: November 4, 2009

/s/ RaNDOLPH G RESS
Randolph Gress
Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to the requirements of 18 U.S.C. § 1@8%@is not being filed as a part of
the Report.



Exhibit 32.2
Certification Pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxly Act of 2002 (18 U.S.C. § 1350)
I, Neil Salmon, certify that:

1. the accompanying Quarterly Report on Form 1@Qtfe period ended September 30, 2009 (the “R§péartly complies with the
requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d), as applécalf the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as alednand

2. the information contained in the Report fairhggents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of
Innophos, Inc. at the dates and for the periodisated.

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906 has been provided Innophos, imt véll be retained by Innophos,
Inc. and furnished to the Securities and Exchangai@ission or its staff upon request.

The undersigned expressly disclaims any obligatampdate the foregoing certification except asineqgl by law.
Date: November 4, 2009

/s/ NEIL S ALMON
Neil Salmon
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pleursuant to the requirements of 18 U.S.C. § 1@8%@is not being filed as a part of
the Report



